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BUSINESS OFFICE

19 Aibak Block New Garden Town, Lahore
W:   www.hiratex.com.pk

MILLS

8 KM Manga Raiwind Road Raiwind District Kasur.
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Mr. Dr. Azhar Waheed
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Mr. Muhammad Tariq
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Mr. Muhammad Tariq   (Execu�ve Director)
Mrs. Zainab Malik   (Non- Execu�ve / Independent Director)
Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Awais  (Non-Execu�ve)
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik   (Non- Execu�ve / Independent Director)
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COMPANY INFORMATION NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BUSINESS OFFICE

19 Aibak Block New Garden Town, Lahore
W:   www.hiratex.com.pk

MILLS

8 KM Manga Raiwind Road Raiwind District Kasur.

No�ce is hereby given that 33rd annual general mee�ng of 
the members of Hira Tex�le Mills Limited will be held on 
Saturday, April 19, 2025 at 10.00 AM at Company's business 
office situated 19-Aibak Block New Garden Town, Lahore to 
transact the following: 

1. To confirm the minutes of the last General Mee�ng. 

2. To receive and adopt the audited accounts of the 
company for the year ended on June 30, 2024 together 
with the Directors and auditor's reports thereon.

3. To consider appointment of external audits for the 
financial year ending June 30, 2025.

4. To transact any other business with the permission of 
the Chair

Notes

1. The share transfer books of the Company will remain 
closed from April 12, 2025 to April 19, 2025 on the 
register of members.

2. A member en�tled to a�end and vote at the General 
Mee�ng may appoint any person as proxy to a�end and 
vote instead of him/her. No person other than a member 
shall act as proxy. The instrument appoin�ng a proxy and 
the power of a�orney or other Authority (if any) under 
which it is signed or a notarially cer�fied copy of such 
power or authority, in order to be valid, must be 
deposited at the registered office of the company at least 
48 hours before the �me of the mee�ng and must be 
duly stamped, singed and witnessed

3. Any individual beneficial owner of CDC en�tle to a�end 
and vote at this mee�ng, must bring his/her original CNIC 
or passport, account and par�cipants. ID numbers to 
prove his/her iden�ty and incase of proxy it must enclose 
an a�ested copy of his/her CNIC of passport. 
Representa�ves of corporate members should bring the 
usual documents requires for such purpose. 

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Dr. Azhar Waheed

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Muhammad Tariq

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Dr. Azhar Waheed   (Non-Execu�ve/Chairperson)
Mr. Muhammad Hussnain Saeed Sohbin (Execu�ve Director)
Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni Chaudhry (Non-Execu�ve)
Mr. Muhammad Tariq   (Execu�ve Director)
Mrs. Zainab Malik   (Non- Execu�ve / Independent Director)
Mr. Saeed Ahmad Khan   (Non-Execu�ve)
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik   (Non- Execu�ve / Independent Director)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik   (Chairman)
Mr. Muhammad Tariq   (Member)
Mrs. Zainab Malik   (Member)

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mrs. Zainab Malik   (Chairperson)
Mr. Saeed Ahmad Khan   (Member)
Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni Chaudhry (Member)

COMPANY SECRETARY & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Muhammad Hussnain Saeed Sohbin

AUDITORS

M/S H.A.M.D. & Co. 
(Chartered Accountants)
Member of TIAG.

1st Floor, 2G (2/7), Mushtaq Ahmad Gurmani Road Gulberg II Lahore.

LEGAL ADVISER

Salman Akram Raja.
Raja Mohammad Akram & Co., 
Advocates & Legal Consultants
33-C Main Gulberg Lahore.

REGISTRAR OF THE COMPANY

Vision Consul�ng Ltd.
3 – C , 1st  floor, LDA Flats,  Lawrance  Road Lahore.
Ph: + 92 42 36283096-97

REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

8 KM Manga Raiwind Road, Raiwind, District Kasur.

4. In terms of sub sec�on 1(b) of Sec�on 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, Members can also a�end and 
par�cipate in the AGM through video conference facility, 
if members residing the vicinity, collec�vely holding 10% 
or more shareholding, provide their consent in wri�ng, 
to par�cipate in the AGM through video conference at 
least ten (10) days prior to date of AGM. A�er receiving 
the consent of the members in aggregate 10% or more 
shareholding, the Company will in�mate members 
regarding venue of video conference facility at least five 
(5) days before the date of the AGM along with complete 
informa�on necessary to enable them to access such 
facility.

5. The audited financial statements of the company for the 
year ended June 30, 2024 have been placed at the 
website: www.hiratex.com.pk

6. Shareholders are requested to immediately no�fy 
change in address. If any to the company share register 
M/s. Vision Consul�ng Ltd. 5-C, 2nd floor, LDA Flats, 
Lawrence Road Lahore. And also furnish a�ested 
photocopy of their CNIC as per lis�ng regula�on, if not 
provided earlier. Email at info@vcl.com.pk  by close of 
business on April 11, 2025, will be treated as being in 
�me for the purposes of a�ending and vo�ng at the 
Annual General Mee�ng.

(By the order of the Board)

  Muhammad Hassnain Saeed Sohbin
Company Secretary

Lahore: March 29, 2025
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VISION STATEMENT

A dynamic profitable and professionally 

managed successful business organiza�on.

MISSION STATEMENT

Hira Tex�le Mills Ltd is commi�ed to the 

highest standards of integrity, honesty, 

openness and professionalism in all of its 

ac�vi�es whenever they are undertaken.

We, the Management Team of HTML are 

striving to improve the quality of yarn by 

con�nuously improving its manufacturing 

facili�es. We are commi�ed to posi�oning the 

Company at the apex of the industry by 

sa�sfying our valued customers, archiving 

superior returns for shareholders, by providing 

congenial work environment where the 

employees feel part of the organiza�on and be 

a good corporate ci�zen by fulfilling our social 

responsibili�es. 
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On behalf of the Board, I appreciate the support of all 
financial ins�tu�on. I express gra�tude to our valued 
customers. It is hard work and dedica�on of all our 
employees that have made such results possible.

It gives me pleasure to present you the annual review of the 
audited financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2024 
and the overall performance of Board. I would take this 
opportunity to invite you for 33rd Annual General Mee�ng of 
the Company.

Review of the Company's Performance

Due to decrease in sales during this financial year, 
performance of the company in term of profitability is in 
alarming posi�on. Margins have been squeezed and it 
appears that they will be further compressed in �me to 
come. I would like to appreciate the efforts of the 
management towards cost reduc�on, be฀er u�liza�on of 
capaci�es and product development. The Company has to 
work harder to compete with increasing compe��on. Plans 
of the Company should yield be฀er efficiencies and reduce 
produc�on cost. The Board is aware of the importance of its 
role in achieving objec�ves of the Company. The Board 
acknowledges its responsibility for corporate & financial 
repor�ng Framework and is commi�ed to good Corporate 
Governance. Board is devoted and focused towards 
Company's value and mission. All the significant issue 
throughout the year were presented before The Board and 
its commi�ees to strengthen and formulize the corporate 
decision-making process and par�ally all the related party 
transac�ons were approved by the Board on the 
recommenda�on of audit commi�ee. The Board has 
prepared and approved the Director's report is published 
with the quarterly and annual financial statements of the 
company and the content of the Directors report are in 
accordance with the requirement of applicable law and 
regula�ons. The Board ensured that the adequate system of 
internal control is in place and has been effec�vely 
implemented and monitored. The Board of Directors met 
four �mes during the year to review the overall performance, 
appraise financial results and overall effec�veness of the role 
played by the Board in achieving the company's objec�ves. 
Mee�ng agendas and suppor�ng papers were provided in 
�mely manner for the Board mee�ng. A�endance of Board 
members in Board and commi�ee mee�ng has been 
sa�sfactory. Board members do have the suitable 
knowledge, variety of exper�se and experience that is 
required to successfully govern the business. Individual 
Board members are commi�ed to perform for the 
be�erment of the company. Areas of planning, risk 
management, policy development, budge�ng, repor�ng, 
monitoring and approval have been appropriately given �me 
and discussed with be�er outcomes.

CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW

Annual Report 2024
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 business. Consequently, the use of going concern 
assump�on in the prepara�on of annexed financial 
statements is not appropriate and adjustments may be 
required to the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. The financial statements do not disclose this 
fact.  

2- As referred to in note 11 to the annexed financial 
statements, the Company was unable to make �mely 
repayments of long-term finances and interest thereon. 
As a result, the Company breached provisions of long-
term financing agreements with Askari Bank Limited (see 
note 11.1), MCB Bank Limited (see note 11.2 & 17.1), 
Na�onal Bank of Pakistan (see note 11.3 & 11.8), Habib 
Bank Limited (see note 11.5), The Bank of Punjab (see 
note 11.6 & 11.7), Bank Alfalah Limited (see note 11.9 & 
11.10), Faysal Bank Limited (see note 11.4, 11.11 & 
11.12) and SAMBA Bank Limited (see note 17.2) whereby 
the en�re liability under these agreements has become 
payable on demand. Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard 
1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' requires that if 
an en�ty breaches a provision of a long-term loan 
arrangement on or before the end of the repor�ng 
period with the effect that the liability becomes payable 
on demand, it classifies the liability as current. However, 
the Company con�nues to classify these finances as non-
current liabili�es. Had there been classified as current 
liabili�es, the total current liabili�es of the Company as 
at the repor�ng date would have been higher by Rs. 
1,589.75 million (2023: Rs. 1,586.27 million). 

3- We have not received responses to our requests for 
direct confirma�ons from bankers of the Company for 
debt finances amoun�ng to Rs. 2,003.66 million (2023: 
Rs. 2,003.66 million), accrued interest thereon 
amoun�ng to Rs. 739.93 million (2023: Rs. 624.59 
million) and bank guarantees amoun�ng to Rs. 29.54 
million (2023: Rs. 29.54 million). We were unable to 
sa�sfy ourselves by alterna�ve means concerning these 
liabili�es and con�ngencies as at the repor�ng date. 
Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether any 
adjustments or disclosures might have been found 
necessary in respect of recorded or unrecorded debt 
finances and accrued interest thereon or disclosed or 
undisclosed con�ngencies and the elements making up 
the statement of profit or loss, statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows. 

4- We have not received responses to our requests for 
direct balance confirma�ons to trade creditors 

Dividend

Due to Loss of the company and circumstances discussed 
above, the Board of Directors has not recommended 
dividend for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Related Par�es

All transac�ons between the related par�es are made at 
arm's length prices determined in accordance with the 
comparable uncontrolled prices method. The company has 
fully complied with the best prac�ces of the transfer pricing 
as contained in the lis�ng regula�on of Pakistan Stock 
exchanges. Related party transac�ons and transfer pricing 
policy were in line with Company's Act. 2017, the Listed 
Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regula�ons 2017 
and Companies Related Par�es Transac�ons and 
Maintenance of Related Records Regula�ons, 2018.

Financial Statements Audit and Auditors Report

The auditors of the Company have issued a disclaimer report 
on the basis of the following ma�ers:

1- 

1- As reported in note 2.2, the Company has incurred gross 
loss of Rs. 167.78 million (2023: Rs. 154.87 million) and 
loss a�er taxa�on of Rs. 281.26 million (2023: Rs. 366.24 
million) during the year ended 30 June 2024. As at 30 
June 2024, the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 
3,116.94 million (2023: Rs. 2,859.56 million) as at the 
repor�ng date which has turned its equity nega�ve 
Rs.577.417 million. Its current liabili�es exceed current 
assets by Rs. 1,525.62 million (2023: Rs. 1,344.76 
million). The Company has not been able to make �mely 
repayments of its debt finances and interest thereon. 
The providers of debt finances have filed recovery suits 
against the Company for Rs. 2,077.45 (2023: Rs. 2,077.45 
million. All short-term borrowing facili�es availed by the 
Company stand expired. 

 These factors indicate existence of material uncertainty 
that raises doubts about the Company's ability to 
con�nue as a going concern and that the Company may 
not be able to discharge its liabili�es and realize its assets 
in the normal course of business. While the Company has 
prepared and presented the annexed financial 
statements on going concern basis based on the factors 
explained in note 2.2, we consider that in the absence of 
any favorable se�lement with the providers of debt 
finances, ability to obtain further financing and revival of 
its opera�ons, the Company may not be able to se�le its 
liabili�es and realize its assets in the normal course of 

 

 

Net Sale 

Gross (Loss)

Finance cost 

Share of (Loss) of Hira Terry

(Loss)/Profit before taxa�on

Provision for taxa�on

(Loss) for the year

(Loss)/Earning per Share

(Rupees in Million)

2024

The Board of Directors feels pleasure in presen�ng the 
Company's Audited financial statements together with the 
auditor's report thereon for the year ended on June 30, 2024. 
Financial Statements have been endorsed by the Chief 
Execu�ve Officer and the Chief Financial Officer in 
accordance with the Code of corporate Governance, having 
been recommended for approval by the Audit Commi�ee of 
the Board and approved by the Board of Directors for 
presenta�on.

Following are the opera�ng & Financial results: -

Our company a�er tax loss of Rs. 281.260 million as 
compared to loss of Rs. 366.245 million during the 
corresponding period. Loss per share for the year is Rs. 3.25 
as compared to loss per share of Rs. 4.23 during the 
corresponding previous year. Gross loss for the year under 
review is 23.43% as compared to loss of 367.00%. 
Administra�ve expenses increased 113.13% of sales. Finance 
cost decreased by 2.39% over the last year.

Due to the above factors, the Company faced severe liquidity 
crisis due to which it was unable to make �mely repayments 
of loans and interest/mark-up thereon. Ten banks have filed 
recovery suits against the Company in Lahore High Court. 
Similarly, the Company has also filed recovery claims against 
these banks in Lahore High Court.

Capital Expenditures

Due to liquidity crisis the Company did not incur any capital 
expenditure.

2023

DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
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  amoun�ng to Rs. 180.05 million (2023: Rs. 180.765 
million) reported in 16, advances from customers 
amoun�ng to Rs. 15.91 million (2023: Rs. 15.91 million) 
reported in note 16. We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves 
by alterna�ve means concerning these balances. 
Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether any 
adjustments might have been found necessary in 
respect of trade creditors, advances from customers and 
advances to suppliers and the elements making up the 
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows. 

5- Accrued liabili�es has been reported in note 16 at Rs. 
36.17 million (2023: Rs. 51.64 million). We were unable 
to sa�sfy ourselves concerning accrued liabili�es due to 
non-availability of underlying records and informa�on 
and accordingly, we were unable to determine whether 
any adjustments might have been found necessary in 
respect of recorded or unrecorded liabili�es and the 
elements making up the statement of profit or loss, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 

6- Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ['GIDC'] payable 
has been reported in note 16 at Rs. 73.9 million (2023: 
Rs. 73.9 million). We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves 
concerning GIDC payable due to non-availability of 
underlying records and informa�on and accordingly, we 
were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been found necessary in respect of recorded 
or unrecorded liabili�es pertaining to GIDC and the 
elements making up the statement of profit or loss, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows.

7- The Company has reported Rs. 1.699 million (2023: Rs. 
1.699 million) as payable to employees' provident fund 
trust in note 16. No informa�on pertaining to these 
transac�ons and balances were made available to us for 
the purpose of audit. Audited financial statements of 
provident fund trust were also not available. We were 
unable to sa�sfy ourselves concerning the Company's 
and employees' contribu�on and payments to the 
provident fund and related liability and expenses 
recognized in the statement of financial posi�on and 
statement of profit or loss respec�vely and thus we were 
unable to determine whether any adjustments might 
have been found necessary in respect of recorded or 
unrecorded liabili�es pertaining to the provident fund 
scheme and the elements making up the statement of

 
 
 

Selling, Administra�ve & Other
Expenses

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42.200

(154.876)

(10.409)

(117.732)
 

-

(353.682)

(12.563)

(366.245)

(4.23)

72.816

(167.787)

(22.185)

(115.342)

-

(307.922)

26.662
(281.260)

(3.25)
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loss a�er taxa�on of Rs. 281.26 million (2023: Rs. 366.24 
million) during the year ended 30 June 2024. As at 30 
June 2024, the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 
3,116.94 million (2023: Rs. 2,859.56 million) as at the 
repor�ng date which has turned its equity nega�ve 
Rs.577.417 million. Its current liabili�es exceed current 
assets by Rs. 1,525.62 million (2023: Rs. 1,344.76 
million). The Company has not been able to make �mely 
repayments of its debt finances and interest thereon. 
The providers of debt finances have filed recovery suits 
against the Company for Rs. 2,077.45 (2023: Rs. 2,077.45 
million. All short-term borrowing facili�es availed by the 
Company stand expired. 

 These factors indicate existence of material uncertainty 
that raises doubts about the Company's ability to 
con�nue as a going concern and that the Company may 
not be able to discharge its liabili�es and realize its assets 
in the normal course of business. While the Company has 
prepared and presented the annexed financial 
statements on going concern basis based on the factors 
explained in note 2.2, we consider that in the absence of 
any favorable se�lement with the providers of debt 
finances, ability to obtain further financing and revival of 
its opera�ons, the Company may not be able to se�le its 
liabili�es and realize its assets in the normal course of 
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The Board of Directors feels pleasure in presen�ng the 
Company's Audited financial statements together with the 
auditor's report thereon for the year ended on June 30, 2024. 
Financial Statements have been endorsed by the Chief 
Execu�ve Officer and the Chief Financial Officer in 
accordance with the Code of corporate Governance, having 
been recommended for approval by the Audit Commi�ee of 
the Board and approved by the Board of Directors for 
presenta�on.

Following are the opera�ng & Financial results: -

Our company a�er tax loss of Rs. 281.260 million as 
compared to loss of Rs. 366.245 million during the 
corresponding period. Loss per share for the year is Rs. 3.25 
as compared to loss per share of Rs. 4.23 during the 
corresponding previous year. Gross loss for the year under 
review is 23.43% as compared to loss of 367.00%. 
Administra�ve expenses increased 113.13% of sales. Finance 
cost decreased by 2.39% over the last year.

Due to the above factors, the Company faced severe liquidity 
crisis due to which it was unable to make �mely repayments 
of loans and interest/mark-up thereon. Ten banks have filed 
recovery suits against the Company in Lahore High Court. 
Similarly, the Company has also filed recovery claims against 
these banks in Lahore High Court.

Capital Expenditures

Due to liquidity crisis the Company did not incur any capital 
expenditure.
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  amoun�ng to Rs. 180.05 million (2023: Rs. 180.765 
million) reported in 16, advances from customers 
amoun�ng to Rs. 15.91 million (2023: Rs. 15.91 million) 
reported in note 16. We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves 
by alterna�ve means concerning these balances. 
Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether any 
adjustments might have been found necessary in 
respect of trade creditors, advances from customers and 
advances to suppliers and the elements making up the 
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows. 

5- Accrued liabili�es has been reported in note 16 at Rs. 
36.17 million (2023: Rs. 51.64 million). We were unable 
to sa�sfy ourselves concerning accrued liabili�es due to 
non-availability of underlying records and informa�on 
and accordingly, we were unable to determine whether 
any adjustments might have been found necessary in 
respect of recorded or unrecorded liabili�es and the 
elements making up the statement of profit or loss, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 

6- Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ['GIDC'] payable 
has been reported in note 16 at Rs. 73.9 million (2023: 
Rs. 73.9 million). We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves 
concerning GIDC payable due to non-availability of 
underlying records and informa�on and accordingly, we 
were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been found necessary in respect of recorded 
or unrecorded liabili�es pertaining to GIDC and the 
elements making up the statement of profit or loss, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows.

7- The Company has reported Rs. 1.699 million (2023: Rs. 
1.699 million) as payable to employees' provident fund 
trust in note 16. No informa�on pertaining to these 
transac�ons and balances were made available to us for 
the purpose of audit. Audited financial statements of 
provident fund trust were also not available. We were 
unable to sa�sfy ourselves concerning the Company's 
and employees' contribu�on and payments to the 
provident fund and related liability and expenses 
recognized in the statement of financial posi�on and 
statement of profit or loss respec�vely and thus we were 
unable to determine whether any adjustments might 
have been found necessary in respect of recorded or 
unrecorded liabili�es pertaining to the provident fund 
scheme and the elements making up the statement of
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 profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows.

8- The Company management did not arrange for us to 
carry out physical verifica�on of property, plant and 
equipment at mill premises at year end. Accordingly, we 
were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been found necessary to the carrying 
amount of property, plant and equipment and the 
elements making up the statement of profit or loss, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 

9- The Company has not disclosed financial informa�on 
about its investment in Hira Terry Mills Limited, an 
associate,  as required by paragraph 21(c)  of 
Interna�onal Financial Report Standard 12 – Disclosure 
of Interests in Other En��es. 

10- The Company has recognized salaries, wages and 
benefits amoun�ng to Rs. 11.42 million (2023: Rs. 
25.074 million) and Rs. 12.39 million (2023: Rs. 4.663 
million) in profit or loss reported in note 31 and note 33 
respec�vely. We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves 
concerning these transac�ons due to nonavailability of 
underlying records and informa�on and accordingly, we 
were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been found necessary in respect of recorded 
or unrecorded salaries, wages and benefits and the 
elements making up the statement of financial posi�on, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 

11- We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves concerning power 
and fuel expense reported in note 31 at Rs. 28.48 million 
(2023: Rs. 36.347 million) due to non-availability of 
underlying record and informa�on necessary for the 
purpose of our audit. Accordingly, we were unable to 
determine whether any adjustments might have been 
found necessary in respect of recorded or unrecorded 
power and fuel expense the elements making up the 
statement of financial  posi�on, statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows.

12- The management did not arrange for us to observe and 
document cut-off data at the end of the repor�ng 
period. we were unable to determine whether 
transac�ons have been recorded in the correct 
accoun�ng period and whether any adjustments might 
have been found necessary in respect of recorded or

 unrecorded transac�ons in profit or loss and the 
elements making up the statement of financial posi�on, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows.

We give below our opinion on the audit ma�ers;

1) The annexed financial statements have been prepared, 
ongoing concern basis, based on following:

a) The management of the company has entered into 
nego�a�on with the providers of debt finances for 
restructuring of long term and short-term debt including 
accrued interest thereon. The management successfully 
nego�ated with some banks for restructuring of short-
term debt and long-term finances, including accrued 
interest. Nego�a�on with some other banks is also 
undergoing.

b) The management is vigorously contes�ng the recovery 
suits filed by providers of debt finances. Further, the 
Company has filed countersuits against debt finance 
providers.

c) The company has con�nued financial support of its 
directors and sponsors. Up to 30th June 2024, the 
directors and sponsors of the company has provided 
financial support amoun�ng to Rs. 528.758 million.

d) The company has shi�ed its product mix from 
manufacturing of coarse count yarn to fine count yarn. 
This will lead to lower cost of raw material (primarily 
co�on) and reduc�on in manpower requirements, 
reduc�on in per spindle cost through savings I energy 
costs as well as up to 60% savings in labor costs. This 
coupled with a company-wide cost-cu�ng drive, is 
expected to provide the much-needed breathing room 
in terms of liquidity.

2. The recovery of these finances is sub judice to Lahore 
High Court. The management intends to carry out 
restructuring nego�a�ons with these bankers the 
results of which cannot be ascertained at this stage. 
Accordingly, the management has classified these 
liabili�es as non-current. Due to long overdue liabili�es 
outstanding in banks and the Company's account has 
been shi�ed to bank's SAM department/or in the court. 
Normal ly  banks never respond to the direct 
confirma�on. These liabili�es represent old balances 
that were previously verified by the auditors along with 
direct confirma�ons in previous years apart from other 
audit procedures.

3. The ma�er is beyond our control as the party sends  
confirma�on directly to auditor. However, the auditors 
could have performed alternate audit procedures in 
accordance with interna�onal standards on audi�ng.

4. Addresses of the suppliers were provided and 
confirma�on le�ers were duly dispatched to the par�es 
and. The ma�er is not in our control because par�es 
send their confirma�ons directly to auditors. These 
balances primarily represent old balances that were 
previously verified by the auditors along with 
confirma�ons from creditors in relevant years apart 
from other substan�ve audit procedures. The auditors 
were free to perform alternate audit procedures as per 
applicable Interna�onal Standard on Audi�ng where 
balance confirma�ons were not received.

5. All accrued liabili�es were subsequently paid except for 
amount payable in lieu of EOBI, Social Security, Head 
office employees' salary, contribu�on to Provident fund.

6. Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ma�er is in the 
court and sub judice. Supreme Court of Pakistan vide 
order dated August 13, 2020 rejected all the appeals 
pertaining to GIDC and ordered the companies to pay 
the outstanding amount. Tex�le companies through 
APTMA, where the Company is a party, has filed review 
pe��on before the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan. The Company has recognized GIDC liability to 
the extent of Rs. 73.9 million in these financial 
statements as the Company is of the view that decision 
on review pe��on before Supreme Court of Pakistan 
shall be decided in favor of the tex�le industry.

7. Our all staff and workers were released from their du�es 
due to temporarily Clouser of the Factory and hance no 
provident fund booked / paid.

8. Our all staff and workers were released from their du�es 
due to temporarily Clouser of the Factory and hance no 
physical verifica�on of property, plant and equipment 
took place provident.

9. Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore vide Order dated 
September 10, 2021 has suspended the no�ce for 
holding of board mee�ng of Hira Terry Mills Limited 
wherein accounts for the year 2020 has to be discussed 
and approved therefore no accounts for the year June 
2020, June 2021, June 2022, June 2023, June 2024 has 
been presented for approval of the Board of Hira Terry 
Mills Limited. 10- We had applied interest rebate to 
federal govt out of which some por�on has been 

 received from federal govt in previous years. The balance 
amount is receivable from the Federal Govt and our case 
is not rejected by the Federal Govt and Rs. 18.99 million 
received during the year.

10. Our key accoun�ng staff was released from their du�es  
when the mill was closed and were unable to provide 
Wages Sheets to Auditors. However, the Company had 
provided all salaries & wages ledger in Excel Form.

11. We have provided all sale tax return (July 2023 TO June 
2024) to auditors. In monthly sales tax return Annexure, 
A showing all details of LESCO and SNPGL bills charged to 
Company. We also provided photocopies of all LESCO 
bills to the auditors bu� he did not bother to check/ 
review the bills. Therefore, we were unable to 
understand why the auditor could not sa�sfy himself.

12. The auditor did not send audit team for observa�on and 
document cut off data at the end of repor�ng period.

ISO 9001 - 2008 Cer�fica�on

The company con�nues to operate the high standard of 
quality and had obtained latest version of cer�fica�on, which 
is renewed every year. The quality control cer�fica�on will 
help to build up trust of new and old customers.

Environments, Health and Safety

The Company maintains safe working condi�ons without risk 
to the health of all employees and public at large. The 
management has maintained safe environment in all its 
opera�ons throughout the year and is constantly upgrading 
their living facili�es.

Future Plans

Although the performance of the company is not sa�sfactory 
during the year and the future market situa�on is changing to 
adversely due to decrease in the yarn prices. The 
management is formula�ng mul�-dimensional strategy to 
tackle all these issues. We are focusing on diversifica�on of 
our product range along with value addi�on and 
consolida�ng our efforts on quality improvements.

The present auditors were appointed in Nov-2024 by the 
Board and no Audit staff was deputed by the Auditors to 
obtain cut off data from the Company.

Corporate & Financial Repor�ng Frame Work

As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, Directors 
are pleased to report that:
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 profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows.

8- The Company management did not arrange for us to 
carry out physical verifica�on of property, plant and 
equipment at mill premises at year end. Accordingly, we 
were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been found necessary to the carrying 
amount of property, plant and equipment and the 
elements making up the statement of profit or loss, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 

9- The Company has not disclosed financial informa�on 
about its investment in Hira Terry Mills Limited, an 
associate,  as required by paragraph 21(c)  of 
Interna�onal Financial Report Standard 12 – Disclosure 
of Interests in Other En��es. 

10- The Company has recognized salaries, wages and 
benefits amoun�ng to Rs. 11.42 million (2023: Rs. 
25.074 million) and Rs. 12.39 million (2023: Rs. 4.663 
million) in profit or loss reported in note 31 and note 33 
respec�vely. We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves 
concerning these transac�ons due to nonavailability of 
underlying records and informa�on and accordingly, we 
were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been found necessary in respect of recorded 
or unrecorded salaries, wages and benefits and the 
elements making up the statement of financial posi�on, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 

11- We were unable to sa�sfy ourselves concerning power 
and fuel expense reported in note 31 at Rs. 28.48 million 
(2023: Rs. 36.347 million) due to non-availability of 
underlying record and informa�on necessary for the 
purpose of our audit. Accordingly, we were unable to 
determine whether any adjustments might have been 
found necessary in respect of recorded or unrecorded 
power and fuel expense the elements making up the 
statement of financial  posi�on, statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows.

12- The management did not arrange for us to observe and 
document cut-off data at the end of the repor�ng 
period. we were unable to determine whether 
transac�ons have been recorded in the correct 
accoun�ng period and whether any adjustments might 
have been found necessary in respect of recorded or

 unrecorded transac�ons in profit or loss and the 
elements making up the statement of financial posi�on, 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows.

We give below our opinion on the audit ma�ers;

1) The annexed financial statements have been prepared, 
ongoing concern basis, based on following:

a) The management of the company has entered into 
nego�a�on with the providers of debt finances for 
restructuring of long term and short-term debt including 
accrued interest thereon. The management successfully 
nego�ated with some banks for restructuring of short-
term debt and long-term finances, including accrued 
interest. Nego�a�on with some other banks is also 
undergoing.

b) The management is vigorously contes�ng the recovery 
suits filed by providers of debt finances. Further, the 
Company has filed countersuits against debt finance 
providers.

c) The company has con�nued financial support of its 
directors and sponsors. Up to 30th June 2024, the 
directors and sponsors of the company has provided 
financial support amoun�ng to Rs. 528.758 million.

d) The company has shi�ed its product mix from 
manufacturing of coarse count yarn to fine count yarn. 
This will lead to lower cost of raw material (primarily 
co�on) and reduc�on in manpower requirements, 
reduc�on in per spindle cost through savings I energy 
costs as well as up to 60% savings in labor costs. This 
coupled with a company-wide cost-cu�ng drive, is 
expected to provide the much-needed breathing room 
in terms of liquidity.

2. The recovery of these finances is sub judice to Lahore 
High Court. The management intends to carry out 
restructuring nego�a�ons with these bankers the 
results of which cannot be ascertained at this stage. 
Accordingly, the management has classified these 
liabili�es as non-current. Due to long overdue liabili�es 
outstanding in banks and the Company's account has 
been shi�ed to bank's SAM department/or in the court. 
Normal ly  banks never respond to the direct 
confirma�on. These liabili�es represent old balances 
that were previously verified by the auditors along with 
direct confirma�ons in previous years apart from other 
audit procedures.

3. The ma�er is beyond our control as the party sends  
confirma�on directly to auditor. However, the auditors 
could have performed alternate audit procedures in 
accordance with interna�onal standards on audi�ng.

4. Addresses of the suppliers were provided and 
confirma�on le�ers were duly dispatched to the par�es 
and. The ma�er is not in our control because par�es 
send their confirma�ons directly to auditors. These 
balances primarily represent old balances that were 
previously verified by the auditors along with 
confirma�ons from creditors in relevant years apart 
from other substan�ve audit procedures. The auditors 
were free to perform alternate audit procedures as per 
applicable Interna�onal Standard on Audi�ng where 
balance confirma�ons were not received.

5. All accrued liabili�es were subsequently paid except for 
amount payable in lieu of EOBI, Social Security, Head 
office employees' salary, contribu�on to Provident fund.

6. Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ma�er is in the 
court and sub judice. Supreme Court of Pakistan vide 
order dated August 13, 2020 rejected all the appeals 
pertaining to GIDC and ordered the companies to pay 
the outstanding amount. Tex�le companies through 
APTMA, where the Company is a party, has filed review 
pe��on before the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan. The Company has recognized GIDC liability to 
the extent of Rs. 73.9 million in these financial 
statements as the Company is of the view that decision 
on review pe��on before Supreme Court of Pakistan 
shall be decided in favor of the tex�le industry.

7. Our all staff and workers were released from their du�es 
due to temporarily Clouser of the Factory and hance no 
provident fund booked / paid.

8. Our all staff and workers were released from their du�es 
due to temporarily Clouser of the Factory and hance no 
physical verifica�on of property, plant and equipment 
took place provident.

9. Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore vide Order dated 
September 10, 2021 has suspended the no�ce for 
holding of board mee�ng of Hira Terry Mills Limited 
wherein accounts for the year 2020 has to be discussed 
and approved therefore no accounts for the year June 
2020, June 2021, June 2022, June 2023, June 2024 has 
been presented for approval of the Board of Hira Terry 
Mills Limited. 10- We had applied interest rebate to 
federal govt out of which some por�on has been 

 received from federal govt in previous years. The balance 
amount is receivable from the Federal Govt and our case 
is not rejected by the Federal Govt and Rs. 18.99 million 
received during the year.

10. Our key accoun�ng staff was released from their du�es  
when the mill was closed and were unable to provide 
Wages Sheets to Auditors. However, the Company had 
provided all salaries & wages ledger in Excel Form.

11. We have provided all sale tax return (July 2023 TO June 
2024) to auditors. In monthly sales tax return Annexure, 
A showing all details of LESCO and SNPGL bills charged to 
Company. We also provided photocopies of all LESCO 
bills to the auditors bu� he did not bother to check/ 
review the bills. Therefore, we were unable to 
understand why the auditor could not sa�sfy himself.

12. The auditor did not send audit team for observa�on and 
document cut off data at the end of repor�ng period.

ISO 9001 - 2008 Cer�fica�on

The company con�nues to operate the high standard of 
quality and had obtained latest version of cer�fica�on, which 
is renewed every year. The quality control cer�fica�on will 
help to build up trust of new and old customers.

Environments, Health and Safety

The Company maintains safe working condi�ons without risk 
to the health of all employees and public at large. The 
management has maintained safe environment in all its 
opera�ons throughout the year and is constantly upgrading 
their living facili�es.

Future Plans

Although the performance of the company is not sa�sfactory 
during the year and the future market situa�on is changing to 
adversely due to decrease in the yarn prices. The 
management is formula�ng mul�-dimensional strategy to 
tackle all these issues. We are focusing on diversifica�on of 
our product range along with value addi�on and 
consolida�ng our efforts on quality improvements.

The present auditors were appointed in Nov-2024 by the 
Board and no Audit staff was deputed by the Auditors to 
obtain cut off data from the Company.

Corporate & Financial Repor�ng Frame Work

As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, Directors 
are pleased to report that:
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i.  The financial statements prepared by the management 
of the Company present fairly its true state of affairs, the 
results of its opera�ons, cash flows and changes in 
equity.

ii.  Proper books of account of the Company have been 
maintained.

iii.  Appropriate accoun�ng policies have been consistently 
applied in prepara�on of financial statements and 
accoun�ng es mates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment.

iv.  Interna�onal Finance Repor�ng Standards (IFRS) as 
applicable in Pakistan have been followed in prepara�on 
of financial statements. Any departures therefrom has 
been adequately disclosed and explained.

v.  The system of internal control is sound and has been 
effec�vely implemented and monitored.

vi.  Opera�ng and financial data and key ra�o of six years are 
annexed.

vii.  The value of investment of contributory provident fund 
as at June 30, 2024amount to Rs. NIL.

viii. The pa�ern of shareholding as at June 30, 2024 is 
annexed.

ix. No trade in the shares of the company were carried out 
by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company secretary, their 
spouses and minor children, during year 2023-2024.

Board Mee�ng

During the year under review Six (6) mee�ngs were held. 
A�endance by each Director is as follows:

 Name of Director A�endance
Mr. Dr. Azhar Waheed
Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni
Mr. Muhammad Tariq
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik - Independent Director

Mr. Saeed Ahmed Khan
Mrs. Zainab Malik - Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Hasnain Saeed Sohbin

6 (Six)
4 (Four)
6 (Six)

3(Three)
1(One)
4(Four)
6 (Six)

Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not an 
end some of the Board mee�ngs.

Name of Director A�endance
Mrs. Zainab Malik (Chairperson)
Mr. Saeed Ahmad Khan 
Mr. Awais Qarni                 

Nil
Nil
Nil

Auditors 

The present auditors H.A.M.D. & Co. (Chartered 
accountants), re�re at the conclusion of the annual general 
mee�ng and being eligible for reappointment for the 
financial year ending June 30, 2025.

Acknowledgements

Con�nued diligence and devo�on of the staff and workers of 
the company and good human rela�ons at all levels deserve 
acknowledgement. The Directors also wish to place on 
record their thanks to the bankers and other stakeholders for 
their con�nued support to the company.

Name of Director A�endance
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Chairman) 3 (Three)

4 (Four)
4 (Four)

Mr. Muhammad Tariq
Mrs. Zainab Malik

Human Resource Commi�ee

In compliance with the code of Corporate Governance, the 
Board of Directors has cons�tuted a Human Resource 
Commi�ee (HR Commi�ee) whose members consist of three 
Directors of whom two are non-execu�ve directors 
appointed by the Board of Directors. No mee�ng held during 
the year.

On Behalf of the Board

MOHAMMAD TARIQ
(Director/ Chief Execu�ve Officer)

Lahore: March 25, 2025

DR. MUHAMMAD AZHAR WAHEED
(Director / Chairman) 

Audit Commi�ee

The Board of Directors in compliance with the code of 
corporate governance has established an audit commi�ee 
which is fully func�onal. The commi�ee comprises three 
members. Chairman of the commi�ee is an Independent 
non-execu�ve director. During the year Four (4) mee�ng of 
Audit Commi�ee were held. A�endance by each Director is 
as follows.
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A�endance by each Director is as follows:

 Name of Director A�endance
Mr. Dr. Azhar Waheed
Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni
Mr. Muhammad Tariq
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik - Independent Director

Mr. Saeed Ahmed Khan
Mrs. Zainab Malik - Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Hasnain Saeed Sohbin

6 (Six)
4 (Four)
6 (Six)

3(Three)
1(One)
4(Four)
6 (Six)

Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not an 
end some of the Board mee�ngs.

Name of Director A�endance
Mrs. Zainab Malik (Chairperson)
Mr. Saeed Ahmad Khan 
Mr. Awais Qarni                 

Nil
Nil
Nil

Auditors 

The present auditors H.A.M.D. & Co. (Chartered 
accountants), re�re at the conclusion of the annual general 
mee�ng and being eligible for reappointment for the 
financial year ending June 30, 2025.

Acknowledgements

Con�nued diligence and devo�on of the staff and workers of 
the company and good human rela�ons at all levels deserve 
acknowledgement. The Directors also wish to place on 
record their thanks to the bankers and other stakeholders for 
their con�nued support to the company.

Name of Director A�endance
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Chairman) 3 (Three)

4 (Four)
4 (Four)

Mr. Muhammad Tariq
Mrs. Zainab Malik

Human Resource Commi�ee

In compliance with the code of Corporate Governance, the 
Board of Directors has cons�tuted a Human Resource 
Commi�ee (HR Commi�ee) whose members consist of three 
Directors of whom two are non-execu�ve directors 
appointed by the Board of Directors. No mee�ng held during 
the year.

On Behalf of the Board

MOHAMMAD TARIQ
(Director/ Chief Execu�ve Officer)

Lahore: March 25, 2025

DR. MUHAMMAD AZHAR WAHEED
(Director / Chairman) 

Audit Commi�ee

The Board of Directors in compliance with the code of 
corporate governance has established an audit commi�ee 
which is fully func�onal. The commi�ee comprises three 
members. Chairman of the commi�ee is an Independent 
non-execu�ve director. During the year Four (4) mee�ng of 
Audit Commi�ee were held. A�endance by each Director is 
as follows.

Annual Report 2024



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E DHira Tex�le Mills Limited14

 

 



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D 15Annual Report 2024



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E DHira Tex�le Mills Limited16 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS

L I M I T E D 17Annual Report 2024



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E DHira Tex�le Mills Limited16 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS

L I M I T E D 17Annual Report 2024







HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E DHira Tex�le Mills Limited20

4

4



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E DHira Tex�le Mills Limited20 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS

L I M I T E D 21

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Amount Rs. (000)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Sales 72.816
                

42.200
               

319,751
            

1,473,014
           

1,463,374
          

2,645,989
Cost of  Sales (240.604)

             
(197.076)

           
(877,301)

           
(1,607,207)

          
(1,529,789)

         
(3,707,501)

Gross profit              (167.788)            (154.876)            (557,550)              (134,193)                 (66,415)           (1,061,512)
Administra�on  Expenses (22.185)

               

(10.409)

             

(27,946)

             

(36,053)

               

(42,630)

              

(35,938)
Selling Expences -

                       

-

                     

(50)

                     

(39)

                       

(36)

                      

(2,893)
Opera�ng  Profit              (189.973)            (165.285)            (585,545)              (170,285)              (109,081)           (1,100,343)
Other Opera�ng Income 0.877

                   

64.117

               

60,628

               

54,271

                 

45,920

                

30,229
Profit before Interest & Taxa�on              (189.096)            (101.168)            (524,917)              (116,014)                 (63,161)           (1,070,114)
Other Opera�ng Expenses                           -                            -                   (1,723)                      (484)                      (415)                      (763)
Financial & Other Charges              (115.342)            (117.732)            (115,531)              (113,286)              (166,352)              (220,936)
No�onal interest                   (3.485)            (134.782)              137,113                     9,505                     7,597                            -   
Share of profit Hira Terry Mills Ltd.                           -                            -                            -                              -                   (68,868)              (567,992)
Profit before Taxa�on (307.923)

             

(353.682)

           

(505,057)

           

(220,279)

             

(291,199)

            

(1,859,805)
Provision for Taxa�on 26.662

                

(12.583)

             

(78,887)

             

47,716

                 

(12,590)

              

(156,037)
Profit a�er Taxa�on (Net Profit) (281.261)

             

(366.265)

           

(583,944)

           

(172,563)

             

(303,789)

            

(2,015,842)

Financial Posi�on

Current Assets 66.107

                

94.586

               

109,843

            

702,508

              

815,828

             

1,164,764
Current Liabili�es 1,591.729

           

1,439.354

         

1,061,080

         

1,750,326

           

1,776,007

          

2,459,510
Opera�ng Fixed Assets 2,782.543

           

2,905.739

         

3,036,412

         

3,162,598

           

2,295,738

          

2,380,082
Right of Use 48.818

                

51.765

               

54,962

               

58,446

                 

62,260

                

66,459
Total Assets 2,947.977

           

3,101.699

         

3,250,826

         

3,973,223

           

3,221,975

          

3,713,199
Net Capital Employed 2,370.561

           

2,805.542

         

3,348,516

         

3,381,941

           

1,884,871

          

1,718,746
Long Term Debts 1,589.753

           

1,588.655

         

1,586,096

         

1,217,999

           

1,141,249

          

1,122,338
Share Holder,s Equity (577.416)

             

(296.157)

           

70,088

               

627,840

              

68,982

                

(97,439)
Surplus on Revalua�on on Fixed Assets 1,109.740

           

1,133.626

         

1,158,770

         

1,159,043

           

438,903

             

465,057
Break -up Value Per Share (Rupees) (6.67)

                    

(3.42)

                  

0.81

                   

7.25

                     

0.80

                    

(1.13)
Number of shares 86,577,920.00

   

86,577,920.00

 

86,577,920

       

86,577,920

         

86,577,920

        

86,577,920

Financial Ra�os Analysis (Annualized)
Current Ra�o 0.04

                     

0.07

                   

0.10

                   

0.40

                     

0.46

                    

0.47
Total Debt to Total Assets 54.46

                   

51.22

                 

48.79

                 

30.66

                   

35.42

                  

30.23
Acid -Test Ra�o 4.15

                     

6.56

                   

9.88

                   

14.52

                   

27.03

                  

35.31
Debt Equity (103.63)

               

(102.02)

             

96:04 66:34 94:06 110:(10)
Debt Coverage Ra�o (3.63)

                    

(2.44)

                  

(2.89)

                  

(0.77)

                    

(0.31)

                   

(3.82)
Leverage Ra�o 67.06

                   

48.44

                 

45.38

                 

5.33

                     

45.71

                  

(39.11)
Interest Coverage Ra�o (11.63) (8.59) 5.37 2.94 2.75 9.42
Fixed Assets Turnover 0.09 0.01 0.10 0.46 0.62 1.08
Total Assets Turnover 0.09 0.01 0.10 0.37 0.45 0.71

Per Share Results & returns

Earning per Share (3.25) (4.23) (6.74) (1.99) (3.51) (23.28)
Return on Capital employed- net (10.10) (13.05) (17.44) (5.10) (16.12) (117.29)

 

Gross Profit to Sales (230.43) (367.00) (174.37) -9.11 -4.54 -40.12
Opera�ng Profit To Sales (260.89)

               

(391.67)

             

(183.13)

             

(11.56)

                  

(7.45)

                    

(41.59)

                  

Net Income to Sale (Profit margin) (386.26)

               

(867.88)

             

(182.62)

             

(11.71)

                  

(20.76)

                  

(76.18)

                  

Return on Assets (ROA) (9.54)

                    

(11.81)

                

(17.96)

                

(4.34)

                    

(9.43)

                    

(54.29)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE    

As at June 30, 2024
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Pa�ern of Shareholding as at June 30, 2024
INCORPORATION No. 0023196 FORM 34

                     

Share Holders
From TO

206 1 - 100 6,131 
131 101 - 500                             77,507 
295 501 - 1000                           252,537 
571 1001 - 5000                        1,720,862 
219 5001 - 10000                        1,747,209 
119 10001 - 15000                        1,557,729 
82 15001 - 20000                        1,527,914 
56 20001 - 25000                        1,324,245 
34 25001 - 30000                           982,035 
22 30001 - 35000                           743,600 
24 35001 - 40000                           921,901 
14 40001 - 45000                           599,500 
27 45001 - 50000                        1,333,500 
4 50001 - 55000                           215,000 

13 55001 - 60000                           772,000 
11 60001 - 65000                           678,216 
4 65001 - 70000                           274,250 
8 70001 - 75000                           595,067 
5 75001 - 80000                           392,500 

11 80001 - 90000                           943,950 
3 90001 - 95000                           282,500 

21 95001 - 100000                        2,091,000 
9 100001 - 105000                           920,548 
3 105001 - 110000                           323,500 
3 110001 - 115000                           343,500 
8 115001 - 120000                           942,560 
3 120001 - 125000                           369,563 
1 125001 - 130000                           130,000 
7 130001 - 140000                           965,000 
2 140001 - 150000                           300,000 
2 150001 - 155000                           309,000 
2 155001 - 160000                           316,500 
2 160001 - 170000                           332,000 
3 170001 - 180000                           534,500 
3 180001 - 190000                           564,275 
1 190001 - 195000                           194,480 
1 200001 - 210000                           210,000 
1 210001 - 225000                           225,000 
4 225001 - 250000                           987,500 
5 250001 - 400000                        1,834,000 
6 400001 - 500000                        2,842,000 
1 500001 - 550000                           544,000 
2 550001 - 600000                        1,200,000 
2 600001 - 700000                        1,209,250 
2 700001 - 900000                        1,733,500 
1 900001 - 1000000                           966,000 
1 1000001 - 1050000                        1,037,500 
1 1050001 - 1150000                        1,107,022 
1 1150001 - 2000000                        1,966,602 
1 2000001 - 5700000                        5,637,933 
1 5700001 - 6000000                        5,725,854 
1 6000001 - 9000000                        8,603,922 
1 9000001 - 11500000                      11,180,186 
1 11500001 - 123850000                      12,383,072 

1964 86,577,920

Shareholding Total                      
Shares Held

Descrip�on Shares Held %
Directors, Chief Execu�ve Officer, and their Spouse, and          
minor children

DR. AZHAR WAHEED 1,700

                        

0.0020
MUHAMMAD AWAIS QARNI 200 0.0002
MUHAMMAD HASNAIN SAEED SOHBIN 500 0.0006
MR. MUHAMMAD TARIQ 500 0.0006
MRS. ZAINAB MALIK (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) 500 0.0006
MR. HASEEB AWAIS 800 0.0000

4,200

                        

0.00

Associated Compaines, undertaking and related par�es.
Adamjee Insurance Co.

Banks, Development Finance Ins�tu�ons,
Non Banking Finnacial Ins�tu�ons.

Joint Stock Companies 1,316,774
                 

1.52

Modaeabas / P.Fund

Gov. Ins�tu�on

General Public 85,261,146

               

98.48
Local

Foreign NIL
86,577,920

               

100.00

          

Shareholders holding 5% or more

MR. MUHANMMAD UMAR VIRK 23,563,258

               

27.22
MRS. UMAIRA OMAR 8,603,922

                 

9.94
MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR 5,725,854

                 

6.61
MRS. SADIYA UMAIR 5,637,933

                 

6.51
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Pa�ern of Shareholding as at June 30, 2024
INCORPORATION No. 0023196 FORM 34

                     

Share Holders
From TO

206 1 - 100 6,131 
131 101 - 500                             77,507 
295 501 - 1000                           252,537 
571 1001 - 5000                        1,720,862 
219 5001 - 10000                        1,747,209 
119 10001 - 15000                        1,557,729 
82 15001 - 20000                        1,527,914 
56 20001 - 25000                        1,324,245 
34 25001 - 30000                           982,035 
22 30001 - 35000                           743,600 
24 35001 - 40000                           921,901 
14 40001 - 45000                           599,500 
27 45001 - 50000                        1,333,500 
4 50001 - 55000                           215,000 

13 55001 - 60000                           772,000 
11 60001 - 65000                           678,216 
4 65001 - 70000                           274,250 
8 70001 - 75000                           595,067 
5 75001 - 80000                           392,500 

11 80001 - 90000                           943,950 
3 90001 - 95000                           282,500 

21 95001 - 100000                        2,091,000 
9 100001 - 105000                           920,548 
3 105001 - 110000                           323,500 
3 110001 - 115000                           343,500 
8 115001 - 120000                           942,560 
3 120001 - 125000                           369,563 
1 125001 - 130000                           130,000 
7 130001 - 140000                           965,000 
2 140001 - 150000                           300,000 
2 150001 - 155000                           309,000 
2 155001 - 160000                           316,500 
2 160001 - 170000                           332,000 
3 170001 - 180000                           534,500 
3 180001 - 190000                           564,275 
1 190001 - 195000                           194,480 
1 200001 - 210000                           210,000 
1 210001 - 225000                           225,000 
4 225001 - 250000                           987,500 
5 250001 - 400000                        1,834,000 
6 400001 - 500000                        2,842,000 
1 500001 - 550000                           544,000 
2 550001 - 600000                        1,200,000 
2 600001 - 700000                        1,209,250 
2 700001 - 900000                        1,733,500 
1 900001 - 1000000                           966,000 
1 1000001 - 1050000                        1,037,500 
1 1050001 - 1150000                        1,107,022 
1 1150001 - 2000000                        1,966,602 
1 2000001 - 5700000                        5,637,933 
1 5700001 - 6000000                        5,725,854 
1 6000001 - 9000000                        8,603,922 
1 9000001 - 11500000                      11,180,186 
1 11500001 - 123850000                      12,383,072 

1964 86,577,920

Shareholding Total                      
Shares Held

Descrip�on Shares Held %
Directors, Chief Execu�ve Officer, and their Spouse, and          
minor children

DR. AZHAR WAHEED 1,700

                        

0.0020
MUHAMMAD AWAIS QARNI 200 0.0002
MUHAMMAD HASNAIN SAEED SOHBIN 500 0.0006
MR. MUHAMMAD TARIQ 500 0.0006
MRS. ZAINAB MALIK (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) 500 0.0006
MR. HASEEB AWAIS 800 0.0000

4,200

                        

0.00

Associated Compaines, undertaking and related par�es.
Adamjee Insurance Co.

Banks, Development Finance Ins�tu�ons,
Non Banking Finnacial Ins�tu�ons.

Joint Stock Companies 1,316,774
                 

1.52

Modaeabas / P.Fund

Gov. Ins�tu�on

General Public 85,261,146

               

98.48
Local

Foreign NIL
86,577,920

               

100.00

          

Shareholders holding 5% or more

MR. MUHANMMAD UMAR VIRK 23,563,258

               

27.22
MRS. UMAIRA OMAR 8,603,922

                 

9.94
MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR 5,725,854

                 

6.61
MRS. SADIYA UMAIR 5,637,933

                 

6.51
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

The Company has compiled with the requirements of the 
Regula�ons in the following manner: -

1. The total number of directors are 07 as per the following:

 a. Male: 06
 b. Female: 01

2. The composi�on of Board is as follows:

 a) Independent Directors: 02 as named hereunder:

 i. Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik
 ii. Mrs. Zainab Malik

b) Non-execu�ve Directors: 03 as named hereunder:

 i.  Mr. Dr. Azhar Waheed
 ii. Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni Chaudhry
 iii. Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Awais 

c) Execu�ve Directors: 02 as named hereunder:

 i. Mr. Mohammad Tariq – Chief Execu�ve Officer
 ii. Mr. Muhammad Hassnain Saeed Sohbin

d) Female Directors: 01 as named hereunder:

 i. Mrs. Zainab Malik

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is 
serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company. 

4- The company has prepared a code of conduct and has 
ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the company along with its 
suppor�ng policies and procedures; 

5- The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, 
overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. The Board has ensured that complete record 
of par�culars of significant policies along with their date 
of approval or upda�ng is maintained by the company; 

6- All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and 
decisions on relevant ma�ers have been taken by the 
Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant 
provisions of the Act and these Regula�ons;

7-  The mee�ngs of the Board were presided over by the 
Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with 
the requirements of Act and the Regula�ons with 
respect to frequency, recording and circula�ng minutes 
of mee�ng of Board;

9-  The Board have a formal policy and transparent 
procedures for remunera�on of directors in accordance 
with the Act and these Regula�ons; 

10- The company has not arranged training programs for its 
directors during the year. However, the company has 
planned training program for its directors in accordance 
with the requirements of PSX regula�ons. Three 
Directors who had completed their training had resigned 
and in place three new directors inducted who have 14 
years educa�on and vast business experience in finance, 
accounts and corporate. 

11- The Board has approved appointment of chief financial 
officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, 
including their remunera�on on and terms and 
condi�ons of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regula�ons; 

12- Chief financial officer and chief execu�ve officer duly 
endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 
Board; 

 a) Audit Commi�ee:

 i.    Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Chairman)
 ii.   Mrs. Zainab Malik 
 iii.  Mr. Mohammad Tariq

 b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee:

 i.   Mrs. Zainab Malik (Chairperson)
 ii.  Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Awais
 iii. Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni Chaudhry

13- The terms of reference of the aforesaid commi�ees have 
been formed, documented and advised to the 
commi�ee for compliance; 

14- The frequency of mee�ngs (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) 
of the commi�ee were as per following: - 

 a) Audit Commi�ee: 04 mee�ngs held for the year ended 
June 30, 2024.

 b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee: NIL

15- The Board has set-up an effec�ve internal Audit func�on. 
The staff is considered to be suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and is fully conversant with 
the policies and procedures of the company;

HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
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Lahore: March 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board

MUHAMMAD Tariq
(Director / C.E.O.) 

20. We confirm that all other requirements of the 
Regula�ons have been complied with except for the 
requirement that the posi�on of Chief Financial officer 
and Company Secretary has been held by the same 
person. The management is of the view, that the current 
CFO and Company Secretary is suitably qualified and 
professionally capable to act and fulfill the du�es and 
responsibili�es of both the roles. In addi�on, it is also a 
cost-effec�ve measure that is in the be�er interest of the 
shareholders of the Company, therefore hiring a separate 
person for both posi�on is not feasible. 

16- The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed 
that they have been given a sa�sfactory ra�ng under the 
Quality Control Review program of the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with 
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their 
partners are in compliance with Interna�onal Federa�on 
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm 
involved in the audit are not a close rela�ve (spouse, 
parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the 
chief execu�ve officer, chief financial officer, head of 
internal audit, company secretary or director of the 
company; 

17- The statutory auditors or the persons associated with 
them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Act, these Regula�ons or 
any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard; 

18- We confirm that all requirements of regula�ons 3, 6, 7, 8, 
27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regula�ons have been compiled 
with, except as explained at Sr. 19; 

19- The Company, currently has two elected independent 
directors out of total seven directors on the Board. Both 
the independent directors have requisite competencies, 
skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and 
execute their du�es competently as per laws and 
regula�ons under which hereby fulfill the necessary 
requirements; therefore, not warrant the appointment 
of a third independent director. Accordingly, the frac�on 
has not been rounded up as one under regula�on 6(1).
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

The Company has compiled with the requirements of the 
Regula�ons in the following manner: -

1. The total number of directors are 07 as per the following:

 a. Male: 06
 b. Female: 01

2. The composi�on of Board is as follows:

 a) Independent Directors: 02 as named hereunder:

 i. Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik
 ii. Mrs. Zainab Malik

b) Non-execu�ve Directors: 03 as named hereunder:

 i.  Mr. Dr. Azhar Waheed
 ii. Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni Chaudhry
 iii. Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Awais 

c) Execu�ve Directors: 02 as named hereunder:

 i. Mr. Mohammad Tariq – Chief Execu�ve Officer
 ii. Mr. Muhammad Hassnain Saeed Sohbin

d) Female Directors: 01 as named hereunder:

 i. Mrs. Zainab Malik

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is 
serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company. 

4- The company has prepared a code of conduct and has 
ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the company along with its 
suppor�ng policies and procedures; 

5- The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, 
overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. The Board has ensured that complete record 
of par�culars of significant policies along with their date 
of approval or upda�ng is maintained by the company; 

6- All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and 
decisions on relevant ma�ers have been taken by the 
Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant 
provisions of the Act and these Regula�ons;

7-  The mee�ngs of the Board were presided over by the 
Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with 
the requirements of Act and the Regula�ons with 
respect to frequency, recording and circula�ng minutes 
of mee�ng of Board;

9-  The Board have a formal policy and transparent 
procedures for remunera�on of directors in accordance 
with the Act and these Regula�ons; 

10- The company has not arranged training programs for its 
directors during the year. However, the company has 
planned training program for its directors in accordance 
with the requirements of PSX regula�ons. Three 
Directors who had completed their training had resigned 
and in place three new directors inducted who have 14 
years educa�on and vast business experience in finance, 
accounts and corporate. 

11- The Board has approved appointment of chief financial 
officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, 
including their remunera�on on and terms and 
condi�ons of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regula�ons; 

12- Chief financial officer and chief execu�ve officer duly 
endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 
Board; 

 a) Audit Commi�ee:

 i.    Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Chairman)
 ii.   Mrs. Zainab Malik 
 iii.  Mr. Mohammad Tariq

 b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee:

 i.   Mrs. Zainab Malik (Chairperson)
 ii.  Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Awais
 iii. Mr. Muhammad Awais Qarni Chaudhry

13- The terms of reference of the aforesaid commi�ees have 
been formed, documented and advised to the 
commi�ee for compliance; 

14- The frequency of mee�ngs (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) 
of the commi�ee were as per following: - 

 a) Audit Commi�ee: 04 mee�ngs held for the year ended 
June 30, 2024.

 b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee: NIL

15- The Board has set-up an effec�ve internal Audit func�on. 
The staff is considered to be suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and is fully conversant with 
the policies and procedures of the company;
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Lahore: March 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board

MUHAMMAD Tariq
(Director / C.E.O.) 

20. We confirm that all other requirements of the 
Regula�ons have been complied with except for the 
requirement that the posi�on of Chief Financial officer 
and Company Secretary has been held by the same 
person. The management is of the view, that the current 
CFO and Company Secretary is suitably qualified and 
professionally capable to act and fulfill the du�es and 
responsibili�es of both the roles. In addi�on, it is also a 
cost-effec�ve measure that is in the be�er interest of the 
shareholders of the Company, therefore hiring a separate 
person for both posi�on is not feasible. 

16- The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed 
that they have been given a sa�sfactory ra�ng under the 
Quality Control Review program of the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with 
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their 
partners are in compliance with Interna�onal Federa�on 
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm 
involved in the audit are not a close rela�ve (spouse, 
parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the 
chief execu�ve officer, chief financial officer, head of 
internal audit, company secretary or director of the 
company; 

17- The statutory auditors or the persons associated with 
them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Act, these Regula�ons or 
any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard; 

18- We confirm that all requirements of regula�ons 3, 6, 7, 8, 
27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regula�ons have been compiled 
with, except as explained at Sr. 19; 

19- The Company, currently has two elected independent 
directors out of total seven directors on the Board. Both 
the independent directors have requisite competencies, 
skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and 
execute their du�es competently as per laws and 
regula�ons under which hereby fulfill the necessary 
requirements; therefore, not warrant the appointment 
of a third independent director. Accordingly, the frac�on 
has not been rounded up as one under regula�on 6(1).
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Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve
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Audited Audited
Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital 6 870,000,000      870,000,000      

Issued share capital 7 865,779,200      865,779,200      
Share premium 8 82,500,000        82,500,000        
Revaluation reserve 9 1,109,740,199   1,133,626,295   
Accumulated losses (3,116,936,020)  (2,859,562,232)  
Loan from sponsors 10 481,500,000      481,500,000      
TOTAL EQUITY (577,416,621)     (296,156,737)     

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances 11 1,589,753,394   1,586,268,141   
Lease liabilities 12 1,638,198          2,387,302          
Employees retirement benefits 13 -                     -                     
Deferred interest 14 -                     -                     
Deferred taxation 15 342,273,800      369,846,477      

1,933,665,392   1,958,501,920   

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 16 447,011,100      410,722,045      

Unclaimed dividend 2,757,216          2,757,216          

Short term borrowings 17 334,970,742      334,970,742      

Accrued interest/profit 18 739,931,590      624,595,200      

Current portion of non-current liabilities 19 67,057,987        66,308,883        

1,591,728,634   1,439,354,086   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,525,394,026   
3,397,856,006

   

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 20

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,947,977,405
   

3,101,699,269
   

(0)
                                    

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

Audited Audited
Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Rupees Rupees

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 21 2,782,543,221   2,905,738,616   
Right-of-use assets 22 48,818,081        51,765,379        
Investment in Associate 23 -                     -                     
Long term deposits 24 50,509,093        49,609,093        

2,881,870,395   3,007,113,088   

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares -                     202,011             
Stock in trade 25 -                     -                     
Trade receivables 26 245,700             -                     
Advances and other receivables 27 42,530,380        65,884,433        
Advance income tax/income tax refundable 28 23,268,778        22,596,744        

Cash and bank balances 29 62,152               5,902,993          

66,107,010        94,586,181        

TOTAL ASSETS 2,947,977,405   3,101,699,269   
0

                                     
0

                                     

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.
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The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve

Audited Audited
Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 30 72,816,369
        

42,200,000
        

Cost of sales 31 (240,603,805)     (197,076,016)
     

Gross loss (167,787,436)     (154,876,016)     

Selling and distribution expenses 32 -                     -                     
Administrative expenses 33 (22,185,084)       (10,408,946)       
Other expenses 34 -                     -                     

(22,185,084)       (10,408,946)       
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses 45.1.6 -                       -                       

(189,972,520)     (165,284,962)     
Other income 35 876,973             64,116,874        

Operating profit (189,095,547)     (101,168,088)     

Finance cost 36 (115,341,556)     (117,732,172)     

Notional interest 11.7.1 (3,485,253)         (134,781,622)     

(118,826,809)     (252,513,794)     

Loss before taxation (307,922,356)     (353,681,882)     

Provision for taxation 37 26,662,472        (12,563,198)       

Loss after taxation (281,259,884)
     

(366,245,080)
     

Loss per share - basic and diluted 38 (3.25)
                  

(4.23)
                  

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

Audited Audited
Note 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-22

Rupees Rupees

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -                     -                     

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 13.4 -                     -                     
Related taxation attributable to:
- origination and reversal of temporary differences 15.1 -                     -                     
- changes in tax rates -                     -                     

-                     -                     

Revaluation surplus recognized during the year 9 -                     -                     
Related taxation attributable to:
- origination and reversal of temporary differences 9 -                     -                     
- changes in tax rates 9 -                     -                     

-                     -                     

Share of other comprehensive loss of associate - unrealized -                     -                     

Other comprehensive income -                     -                     

Loss after taxation (281,259,884)     (366,245,080)     

Total comprehensive (loss)/income (281,259,884)     (366,245,080)     

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D 37

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve

Issued Share Revaluation Accumulated Loan from Total
share capital premium reserve losses sponsors equity

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Balance as at 01 July 2022 865,779,200     82,500,000 1,158,769,554 (2,518,460,411) 481,500,000 70,088,343     

Comprehensive income

Loss after taxation -                   -              -                   (366,245,080)    -                (366,245,080) 
Other comprehensive (loss)/income -                   -              -                   -                    -                -                 

Total comprehensive (loss)/income -
                   

-
              

-
                   

(366,245,080)
    

-
                

(366,245,080)
 

Other transactions

Incremental depreciation -
                   

-
              

(25,143,259)
     

25,143,259
        

-
                

-
                 

Transaction with owners -
                   

-
              

-
                   

-
                    

-
                

-
                 Balance as at 30 June 2023 865,779,200

     
82,500,000

 
1,133,626,295

 
(2,859,562,232)

 
481,500,000

 
(296,156,737)

 
Balance as at 01 July 2023 865,779,200

     
82,500,000

 
1,133,626,295

 
(2,859,562,232)

 
481,500,000

 
(296,156,737)

 
Comprehensive income

Loss after taxation -
                   

-
              

-
                   

(281,259,884)
    

-
                

(281,259,884)
 Other comprehensive income -

                   
-

              
-

                   
-

                    
-

                
-

                 Total comprehensive income/(loss) -

                   

-

              

-

                   

(281,259,884)

    

-

                

(281,259,884)

 
Other transactions

Incremental depreciation -

                   

-

              

(23,886,096)

     

23,886,096

        

-

                

-

                 Transaction with owners -

                   

-

              

-

                   

-

                    

-

                

-

                 Balance as at 30 June 2024 865,779,200

     

82,500,000

 

1,109,740,199

 

(3,116,936,020)

 

481,500,000

 

(577,416,621)

 
The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

Audited Audited
Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 39 (5,275,602)         5,097,175          

Adjustments for:
Employees retirement benefits -                     -                     
Interest on borrowings -                     -                     
Income tax (1,582,239)         (281,750)            

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (6,857,841)         4,815,425          

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment -                     -                     
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,017,000          880,000             

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 1,017,000          880,000             

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term finances (0)                       -                     

Payment of lease liabilities -                     (667,242)            

Net cash used in financing activities (0)                       (667,242)            

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,840,841)         5,028,183          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5,902,993          874,810             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 40 62,152               5,902,993          

0
                        

0
                        

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.
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The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D 39

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

 

1.1 Placement on defaulters segment

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

-

2.2 Appropriateness of the going concern assumption

a)

b)

c)

Hira Textile Mills Limited ['the Company'] was incorporated in Pakistan as a Public Limited Company under the repealed
CompaniesOrdinance, 1984 (now CompaniesAct, 2017) and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.The principal activity
of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The registered office and manufacturing facility of the Company is situated
at 8 KM,MangaRaiwind Road, District Kasur in the Province of Punjab.The business office of the company located at 19. Aibak
Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS'] issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ['IASB'] as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the CompaniesAct, 2017 differ from the IFRSand IFAS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

The Company has been incurring losses for the past few years. During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Company has
incurred gross loss of Rs. 167.787 millionand loss after taxation of Rs. 281.259 million.As at 30 June 2024, the Companyhas
accumulated losses of Rs. 3,116.936 millionas at the reporting date which has turned its equity negative Rs. 577.417 million
and its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 1525.622 million. The Company has failed to make timely repayments of 
its debt finances and interest thereon due to which lenders have filed recovery suits against the Company. All short term
borrowing facilities availed by the Company stand expired. These factors raise doubts about the Company'sability to continue
as a going concern and that the Company may not be able discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in normal course of
business. However, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis based on the following:

Further during the previous year, the management successfully negotiated restructuring of short term debt, including
accrued interest thereon with Bank Alfalah Limited,whereby liabilitiesamountingto Rs. 242.695 millionwere converted into
long term finance facilities (see note 11.9 & 11.10) and accrued interest thereon was deferred (see note 14) with
repayments commencing from September 2024.

The managmentof the company has entered into negotiation with the providers of debt finances for restructuring of long
term and short term debt including accrued interest thereon. The managementsuccessfully negotiated restructuring of short
term debt and long term finances, including accrued interest thereon with National Bank of Pakistan, whereby liabilities
amounting to Rs. 646.788 millionwere converted into long term finance facilities (see note 11.3) with a grace period upto
September 2023 and accrued interest thereon was deferred (see note 14) with repayments commencing from September 

The Company has been placed on defaulters segment by Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The management is vigorously contesting the recovery suits filed by providers of debt finances. Further, the Company has 
filed countersuits claiming an aggregate recovery of 1,058.974 million (see note 20.1)

The Company has continued financial support of its sponsors. Upto 30 June 2024, the sponsors of the Company has 
provided financial support amounting to Rs. 528.758 million.

2.3 Basis of measurement

Items Measurement basis

Financial liabilities Amortized cost
Financial assets Amortized cost
Land, building and plant and machinery Revalued amount
Employee retirement benefits Present value

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured
on an alternative basis as at the reporting date.

2.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

2.4.1 Critical accounting judgements

(a) Business model assessment (see note 44.1)

(b) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 45.1)

2.4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Calculation of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 45.1.3)

The preparation of financial statements requires managementto make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgmentsabout carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

Judgments made by managementin the application of accounting and reporting standards that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent years are as follows:

The Companyclassifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company'sbusiness modelfor managingthe financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Companydetermines the business modelat a level
that reflects how financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed.The Company monitors financial
assets measured at amortized cost or fair value that are derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for
their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial 
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model
and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the year.

As explained in note 45.1, expected credit losses ['ECL']are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, as
an allowance equal to 12-month/lifetimeECLfor 'performing' assets, or lifetimeECLfor assets categorized as 'doubtful' or 'in
default'. An asset is categorized as 'doubtful' when its credit risk has increased significantly since initialrecognition. IFRS9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-

The Companyrecognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date
of initialrecognition. The amountof expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial asset. Estimating expected credit losses and changes there in
requires taking into account qualitativeand quantitative forward lookinginformation. When measuring expected credit losses
on financial assets the Companyuses reasonable and supportable forward lookinginformation as well as historical data to
calculate the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive,
taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, if any. Probability of default constitutes a

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimationuncertainty at the reporting date that may have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitieswithin the next financial year,
are as follows:
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1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

 

1.1 Placement on defaulters segment

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

-

2.2 Appropriateness of the going concern assumption

a)

b)

c)

Hira Textile Mills Limited ['the Company'] was incorporated in Pakistan as a Public Limited Company under the repealed
CompaniesOrdinance, 1984 (now CompaniesAct, 2017) and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.The principal activity
of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The registered office and manufacturing facility of the Company is situated
at 8 KM,MangaRaiwind Road, District Kasur in the Province of Punjab.The business office of the company located at 19. Aibak
Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS'] issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ['IASB'] as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the CompaniesAct, 2017 differ from the IFRSand IFAS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

The Company has been incurring losses for the past few years. During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Company has
incurred gross loss of Rs. 167.787 millionand loss after taxation of Rs. 281.259 million.As at 30 June 2024, the Companyhas
accumulated losses of Rs. 3,116.936 millionas at the reporting date which has turned its equity negative Rs. 577.417 million
and its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 1525.622 million. The Company has failed to make timely repayments of 
its debt finances and interest thereon due to which lenders have filed recovery suits against the Company. All short term
borrowing facilities availed by the Company stand expired. These factors raise doubts about the Company'sability to continue
as a going concern and that the Company may not be able discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in normal course of
business. However, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis based on the following:

Further during the previous year, the management successfully negotiated restructuring of short term debt, including
accrued interest thereon with Bank Alfalah Limited,whereby liabilitiesamountingto Rs. 242.695 millionwere converted into
long term finance facilities (see note 11.9 & 11.10) and accrued interest thereon was deferred (see note 14) with
repayments commencing from September 2024.

The managmentof the company has entered into negotiation with the providers of debt finances for restructuring of long
term and short term debt including accrued interest thereon. The managementsuccessfully negotiated restructuring of short
term debt and long term finances, including accrued interest thereon with National Bank of Pakistan, whereby liabilities
amounting to Rs. 646.788 millionwere converted into long term finance facilities (see note 11.3) with a grace period upto
September 2023 and accrued interest thereon was deferred (see note 14) with repayments commencing from September 

The Company has been placed on defaulters segment by Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The management is vigorously contesting the recovery suits filed by providers of debt finances. Further, the Company has 
filed countersuits claiming an aggregate recovery of 1,058.974 million (see note 20.1)

The Company has continued financial support of its sponsors. Upto 30 June 2024, the sponsors of the Company has 
provided financial support amounting to Rs. 528.758 million.

2.3 Basis of measurement

Items Measurement basis

Financial liabilities Amortized cost
Financial assets Amortized cost
Land, building and plant and machinery Revalued amount
Employee retirement benefits Present value

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured
on an alternative basis as at the reporting date.

2.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

2.4.1 Critical accounting judgements

(a) Business model assessment (see note 44.1)

(b) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 45.1)

2.4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Calculation of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 45.1.3)

The preparation of financial statements requires managementto make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgmentsabout carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

Judgments made by managementin the application of accounting and reporting standards that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent years are as follows:

The Companyclassifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company'sbusiness modelfor managingthe financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Companydetermines the business modelat a level
that reflects how financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed.The Company monitors financial
assets measured at amortized cost or fair value that are derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for
their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial 
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model
and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the year.

As explained in note 45.1, expected credit losses ['ECL']are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, as
an allowance equal to 12-month/lifetimeECLfor 'performing' assets, or lifetimeECLfor assets categorized as 'doubtful' or 'in
default'. An asset is categorized as 'doubtful' when its credit risk has increased significantly since initialrecognition. IFRS9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-

The Companyrecognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date
of initialrecognition. The amountof expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial asset. Estimating expected credit losses and changes there in
requires taking into account qualitativeand quantitative forward lookinginformation. When measuring expected credit losses
on financial assets the Companyuses reasonable and supportable forward lookinginformation as well as historical data to
calculate the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive,
taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, if any. Probability of default constitutes a

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimationuncertainty at the reporting date that may have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitieswithin the next financial year,
are as follows:
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(b) Present value of defined benefit obligation (see note 13)

key input in measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihoodof default over a given
timehorizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. If the ECL
rates on financial assets carried at amortized cost were higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would
have been higher (lower) by Rs. million (30-Jun-21: Rs. million). Further information on the Company's credit risk
management practices and credit quality and impairment of financial assets is referred to in note 45.1.3.

The determinationof the Company's defined benefit obligation depends on certain assumptions, which include selection of
the discount rate, average rate of increase in salaries and mortality rates. The discount rate is set by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds as there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in
Pakistan.Average rate of increase in salary are based on marketexpectations, inflation and historical trends. Mortality rates
are based upon SLIC(2001-05) mortality table. These assumptions are considered to be a key source of estimation
uncertainty as relatively small changes in the assumptions used may have a significant effect on the Company's financial
statements within the next year.

(c) Taxation provisions (see note 37)

(b) Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and credits (see note 15.3)

2.5 Functional currency

2.6 Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on March 25, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

3

3.1 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations)

These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency. The amounts
reported in these financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupees unless specified otherwise.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR.

The following new and revised standards, interpretations and amendmentsare effective in the current year but are either not
relevant to the Companyor their applicationdoes not have any materialimpact on the financial statements of the Companyother
than presentation and disclosures, except as stated otherwise.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant managementjudgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together
with future tax planning strategies. 

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal
forums while estimatingits provisions for current tax and tax contingencies. The provision for current tax is estimated at Rs.
0.91 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. 12.563 million).The managementbelieves that the provision for current tax made in the financial
statements is sufficient to discharge related tax liability.

Provision (30-Jun-24: Credit) for deferred tax of Rs. -27.572677 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. 12.036 million)has been estimated
after taking into account historical and future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law.

Further information on the taxation provisions is referred to in note 37.

Present value of the Company's defined benefit obligation has been determined by an independent actuary, Najeeb
Consultants (Private) Limited,and is stated in the statement of financial position at Rs. NIL (30-Jun-23: Rs. million).Further
information on the carrying amounts of the Company's defined benefit obligation and the sensitivity of those amounts to
changes in assumptions is referred to in note 13.

The amendments update an outdated reference to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 without significantly changing the
requirements in the standard.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment)

3.3 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37 - Impairment of Assets)

The amendmentsspecify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incrementalcosts of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an examplewould be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendmentsprohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipmentany proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those
items, in profit or loss.

3.4 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020

The annual improvements have made amendments to the following standards:

-

-

-

-

4

Deferred Indefinitely

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

01 January 2024

01 January 2024

01 January 2024

01 January 2024

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to IAS 12 - Income Taxes).

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases)

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12 - Income

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - Making Materiality Judgements).

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8 - Accounting Policies,Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors).

(annual periods beginning
on or after)

Sale or contribution of assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to IFRS10 - Consolidated FinancialStatements and IAS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures).

Classification of Liabilitiesas Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation
of Financial Statements).

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements)

IFRS1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by its

IFRS9 - Financial Instruments - The amendmentclarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test
in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or
received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on the other’s behalf.

IFRS 16 - Leases - The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example the
illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

IAS 41 - Agriculture - The amendmentremoves the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows and
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments : Disclosures)

The following standards, interpretations and amendmentsare in issue which are not effective as at the reporting date and have
not been early adopted by the Company.

Effective date
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(b) Present value of defined benefit obligation (see note 13)

key input in measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihoodof default over a given
timehorizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. If the ECL
rates on financial assets carried at amortized cost were higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would
have been higher (lower) by Rs. million (30-Jun-21: Rs. million). Further information on the Company's credit risk
management practices and credit quality and impairment of financial assets is referred to in note 45.1.3.

The determinationof the Company's defined benefit obligation depends on certain assumptions, which include selection of
the discount rate, average rate of increase in salaries and mortality rates. The discount rate is set by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds as there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in
Pakistan.Average rate of increase in salary are based on marketexpectations, inflation and historical trends. Mortality rates
are based upon SLIC(2001-05) mortality table. These assumptions are considered to be a key source of estimation
uncertainty as relatively small changes in the assumptions used may have a significant effect on the Company's financial
statements within the next year.

(c) Taxation provisions (see note 37)

(b) Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and credits (see note 15.3)

2.5 Functional currency

2.6 Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on March 25, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

3

3.1 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations)

These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency. The amounts
reported in these financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupees unless specified otherwise.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR.

The following new and revised standards, interpretations and amendmentsare effective in the current year but are either not
relevant to the Companyor their applicationdoes not have any materialimpact on the financial statements of the Companyother
than presentation and disclosures, except as stated otherwise.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant managementjudgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together
with future tax planning strategies. 

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal
forums while estimatingits provisions for current tax and tax contingencies. The provision for current tax is estimated at Rs.
0.91 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. 12.563 million).The managementbelieves that the provision for current tax made in the financial
statements is sufficient to discharge related tax liability.

Provision (30-Jun-24: Credit) for deferred tax of Rs. -27.572677 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. 12.036 million)has been estimated
after taking into account historical and future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law.

Further information on the taxation provisions is referred to in note 37.

Present value of the Company's defined benefit obligation has been determined by an independent actuary, Najeeb
Consultants (Private) Limited,and is stated in the statement of financial position at Rs. NIL (30-Jun-23: Rs. million).Further
information on the carrying amounts of the Company's defined benefit obligation and the sensitivity of those amounts to
changes in assumptions is referred to in note 13.

The amendments update an outdated reference to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 without significantly changing the
requirements in the standard.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment)

3.3 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37 - Impairment of Assets)

The amendmentsspecify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incrementalcosts of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an examplewould be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendmentsprohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipmentany proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those
items, in profit or loss.

3.4 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020

The annual improvements have made amendments to the following standards:

-

-

-

-

4

Deferred Indefinitely

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

01 January 2024

01 January 2024

01 January 2024

01 January 2024

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to IAS 12 - Income Taxes).

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases)

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12 - Income

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - Making Materiality Judgements).

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8 - Accounting Policies,Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors).

(annual periods beginning
on or after)

Sale or contribution of assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to IFRS10 - Consolidated FinancialStatements and IAS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures).

Classification of Liabilitiesas Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation
of Financial Statements).

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements)

IFRS1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by its

IFRS9 - Financial Instruments - The amendmentclarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test
in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or
received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on the other’s behalf.

IFRS 16 - Leases - The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example the
illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

IAS 41 - Agriculture - The amendmentremoves the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows and
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments : Disclosures)

The following standards, interpretations and amendmentsare in issue which are not effective as at the reporting date and have
not been early adopted by the Company.

Effective date
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IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts

Other than afore mentioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which
have not been notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ['SECP']:

The Company intends to adopt these new and revised standards, interpretations and amendments on their effective dates,
subject to, where required, notification by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan under section 225 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 regarding their adoption. The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendmentsand
interpretations in future periods, will not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements other than in 

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

All other items or property, plant and equipment (electric installation, generator, power house, factory equipment, office
equipment, telephone installation, tarpaulin, computers, furniture and fixtures and vehicles) are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined,are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes the cost of material, labour and appropriate overheads
directly relating to the construction, erection and installation of the asset and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, determined on the same basis as other
assets of the same class, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 21, so as to write off the cost or revalued amounts of
assets (other than freehold land and assets under construction) over their useful lives, using the reducing balance method,
with the exception of right-of-use assets, for which the lease does not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company at the end of lease term, which are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and useful lives of the underlying
assets, using straight line method.

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment commences from the month in which the item is ready for intended
use. Depreciation is discontinued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methodare reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Incrementaldepreciation being the difference between depreciation based on the revalued amounts recognized in profit or loss
and depreciation based on the historical cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. On
the subsequent disposal or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipmentis derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from its continued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of such items is determinedas the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment assets held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, except for freehold land, which is not
depreciated. Revaluationsare performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amountdoes not differ materiallyfrom
that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is credited to the revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense
in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is recognized as an
expense in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

5.2 Leases as 'lessee'

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identifiable asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for the short-term leases and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are 

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initialamount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments madeat or before the commencementdate, plus any initialdirect costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 

Subsequent to initial recognition, a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairmentlosses, if any. Depreciation is recognized using straight-line method over the shorter of lease term and useful life of
the right-of-use asset, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of lease term
or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of operating
fixed assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is adjusted for certain remeasurements of the related lease liability.

- Fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

- The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

-

-

-

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease liability is measured at amortized cost using effective interest method whereby the
carrying amount of lease liability is increased to reflect the interest thereon and decreased to reflect lease payments made.
Interest is recognized in profit or loss.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurementof the lease liabilityand the right-of-
use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate;

The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an
unchanged discount rate, unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a
revised discount rate is used; or

A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

Lease liability is remeasured whenever: 

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the related right-of-use
asset, except where the carrying amount of right-of-use asset is reduced to zero. In that case, any adjustment exceeding the
carrying amount of the right-of use asset is recognized in profit or loss.

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencementdate,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate. Lease payments included in measurement of lease liability comprise:
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IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts

Other than afore mentioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which
have not been notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ['SECP']:

The Company intends to adopt these new and revised standards, interpretations and amendments on their effective dates,
subject to, where required, notification by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan under section 225 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 regarding their adoption. The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendmentsand
interpretations in future periods, will not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements other than in 

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

All other items or property, plant and equipment (electric installation, generator, power house, factory equipment, office
equipment, telephone installation, tarpaulin, computers, furniture and fixtures and vehicles) are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined,are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes the cost of material, labour and appropriate overheads
directly relating to the construction, erection and installation of the asset and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, determined on the same basis as other
assets of the same class, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 21, so as to write off the cost or revalued amounts of
assets (other than freehold land and assets under construction) over their useful lives, using the reducing balance method,
with the exception of right-of-use assets, for which the lease does not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company at the end of lease term, which are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and useful lives of the underlying
assets, using straight line method.

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment commences from the month in which the item is ready for intended
use. Depreciation is discontinued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methodare reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Incrementaldepreciation being the difference between depreciation based on the revalued amounts recognized in profit or loss
and depreciation based on the historical cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. On
the subsequent disposal or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipmentis derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from its continued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of such items is determinedas the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment assets held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, except for freehold land, which is not
depreciated. Revaluationsare performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amountdoes not differ materiallyfrom
that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is credited to the revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense
in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is recognized as an
expense in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

5.2 Leases as 'lessee'

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identifiable asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for the short-term leases and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are 

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initialamount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments madeat or before the commencementdate, plus any initialdirect costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 

Subsequent to initial recognition, a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairmentlosses, if any. Depreciation is recognized using straight-line method over the shorter of lease term and useful life of
the right-of-use asset, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of lease term
or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of operating
fixed assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is adjusted for certain remeasurements of the related lease liability.

- Fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

- The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

-

-

-

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease liability is measured at amortized cost using effective interest method whereby the
carrying amount of lease liability is increased to reflect the interest thereon and decreased to reflect lease payments made.
Interest is recognized in profit or loss.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurementof the lease liabilityand the right-of-
use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate;

The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an
unchanged discount rate, unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a
revised discount rate is used; or

A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

Lease liability is remeasured whenever: 

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the related right-of-use
asset, except where the carrying amount of right-of-use asset is reduced to zero. In that case, any adjustment exceeding the
carrying amount of the right-of use asset is recognized in profit or loss.

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencementdate,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate. Lease payments included in measurement of lease liability comprise:
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5.3 Investment in associates

5.4 Stores and spares

5.5 Stock in trade

Category Basis of determination of cost

Raw material Moving average cost
Work in process Average manufacturing cost
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost
Stock in transit Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity methodof accounting. Under the equity method,an investment in
an associate is recognized initially in the statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the
Company’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, dividends received and impairment
losses, if any. When the Company’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Company’s interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Company’snet investment in the associate), the Company
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Companyhas
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

These are generally held for internal use and are valued at cost. Cost is determinedon the basis of weighted average except
for items in transit, which are valued at invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date. For items which are
considered obsolete, the carrying amount is written down to nil. Spare parts held exclusively for capitalizationare classified as
property, plant and equipment.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the exception of stock of waste which is valued at net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the following basis:

5.6 Employee benefits

5.6.1 Short-term employee benefits

 
5.6.2 Post-employment benefits

5.7 Financial instruments

5.7.1 Recognition

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its employees who have completed the minimumqualifying
service period. Liability is adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligationand the adjustment is charged to statement
of profit or loss with the exception of remeasurements which are recognized in statement of comprehensive income.The
amount recognized on statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligation. The details
of the scheme are referred to in note 13 to the financial statements.

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services
rendered by employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in statement of profit or loss unless 
it is included in the cost of inventories or property, plant and equipmentas permittedor required by the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.If the amountpaid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized
as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or cash refund.

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labour and an
appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimatedcosts of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

5.7.2 Classification

(a) Financial assets at amortized cost

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ['fair value through OCI']

(i)

(ii)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(d) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(e) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

financial assets held within a business modelwhose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' or as 'financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income', are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss or for which
the Companymakes an irrevocable election at initialrecognition to designate as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

These are financial liabilitieswhich are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitmentsto provide loans at below-
market interest rate, contingent consideration payable to an acquirer in a business combination or financial liabilities that
arise when transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition.

These are financial liabilities which have not been classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost' or for which the
Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial liabilitiesat fair value through profit or
loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the
substance of contractual provisions. The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initialrecognition
as follows:

investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by the Company
as acquirer in a business combination, for which the Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
present changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 

These are financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cashflows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These are:

5.7.3 Measurement

5.7.4 Derecognition

5.7.5 Off-setting

5.7.6 Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or
when the Companytransfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards
of the financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obligationsspecified in the contract expire or a
discharged or cancelled.

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company
has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in individual policy statements associated with each financial 
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5.3 Investment in associates

5.4 Stores and spares

5.5 Stock in trade

Category Basis of determination of cost

Raw material Moving average cost
Work in process Average manufacturing cost
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost
Stock in transit Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity methodof accounting. Under the equity method,an investment in
an associate is recognized initially in the statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the
Company’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, dividends received and impairment
losses, if any. When the Company’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Company’s interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Company’snet investment in the associate), the Company
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Companyhas
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

These are generally held for internal use and are valued at cost. Cost is determinedon the basis of weighted average except
for items in transit, which are valued at invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date. For items which are
considered obsolete, the carrying amount is written down to nil. Spare parts held exclusively for capitalizationare classified as
property, plant and equipment.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the exception of stock of waste which is valued at net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the following basis:

5.6 Employee benefits

5.6.1 Short-term employee benefits

 
5.6.2 Post-employment benefits

5.7 Financial instruments

5.7.1 Recognition

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its employees who have completed the minimumqualifying
service period. Liability is adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligationand the adjustment is charged to statement
of profit or loss with the exception of remeasurements which are recognized in statement of comprehensive income.The
amount recognized on statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligation. The details
of the scheme are referred to in note 13 to the financial statements.

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services
rendered by employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in statement of profit or loss unless 
it is included in the cost of inventories or property, plant and equipmentas permittedor required by the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.If the amountpaid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized
as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or cash refund.

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labour and an
appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimatedcosts of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

5.7.2 Classification

(a) Financial assets at amortized cost

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ['fair value through OCI']

(i)

(ii)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(d) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(e) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

financial assets held within a business modelwhose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' or as 'financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income', are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss or for which
the Companymakes an irrevocable election at initialrecognition to designate as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

These are financial liabilitieswhich are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitmentsto provide loans at below-
market interest rate, contingent consideration payable to an acquirer in a business combination or financial liabilities that
arise when transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition.

These are financial liabilities which have not been classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost' or for which the
Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial liabilitiesat fair value through profit or
loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the
substance of contractual provisions. The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initialrecognition
as follows:

investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by the Company
as acquirer in a business combination, for which the Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
present changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 

These are financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cashflows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These are:

5.7.3 Measurement

5.7.4 Derecognition

5.7.5 Off-setting

5.7.6 Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or
when the Companytransfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards
of the financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obligationsspecified in the contract expire or a
discharged or cancelled.

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company
has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in individual policy statements associated with each financial 
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5.8 Ordinary share capital

5.9 Loans and borrowings

5.9.1

5.9.2

5.10 Leases as 'lessor'

5.11 Ijarah transactions

Loans and borrowings, except for loans from directors and sponsors specified in note 5.9.2, are classified as 'financial
liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred,
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with any difference
between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective mark-up 

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as deduction from equity.

Ujrah payments under an Ijarah are recognized as an expense in the statements of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the Ijarah terms unless another systematic basis are representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit, even if the
payments are not on that basis.

The Company enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment property. The Company also leasesout
its machinery. 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease receivables, except for credit-
impairedfinancial assets for which interest income is calculated with reference to their amortized cost (i.e. after a deduction of
the loss allowance). 

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Company appliesIFRS15 – Revenue from Contracts with
Customers to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.

Interest free loans from directors and sponsors, for which there is no agreed schedule or tenor for repayment and which are
repayable at the Company's discretion, are recognized as equity. These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are
measured at cost.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial directcosts
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amountof the leased asset and recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at
the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated unguaranteed residual value and applies the
impairment requirements of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, recognizing an allowance for expected credit losses on the
lease receivables. 

5.12 Trade and other payables

5.12.1 Financial liabilities

5.12.2 Non-financial liabilities

These are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair
value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initialrecognition, these are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in statement of profit or loss.

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

5.13 Provisions and contingencies

5.14 Trade and other receivables
5.14.1 Financial assets

5.14.2 Non-financial assets

5.15 Contracts with Customers

5.15.1 Revenue

5.15.2 Contract assets

5.15.3 Contract liabilities

5.16 Comprehensive income

These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at fair value at the date of
transaction, plus attributable transaction costs, except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component,
which are measured at undiscounted invoice price. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

obligations, including significant payment terms Revenue recognition policies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that outflow of resources embodyingeconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be madeof the amountof obligation.The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, or where a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is 

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is madeor the payment is due
if a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Comprehensiveincome is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from
transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income ['OCI'].OCIcomprises items of income and expense, including reclassification
adjustments, that are not recognized in statement of profit or loss as required or permitted by accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and is presented in 'statement of comprehensive income'.

Contract assets represent work performed up to the reporting date which has not been invoiced to customers because the
related performance obligations remain partially unsatisfied as at the reporting date.

Yarn, Raw cotton, Polyester, 
Waste

Revenue is recognized at a point in
time when the goods are
dispatched to customers.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognizes revenue
from a contract with customer when the Companysatisfies an obligationspecified in that contract. The following table provides
information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including
significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance
Product/service

Performance obligations are satisfied when goods are 
dispatched to the customers. Invoices are generated at 
that point in time and are usually payable within a period 
ranging from 30 days to 120 days. There are no customer 
loyalty programs or warranty provisions. However, some 
contracts allow for return of goods if those do not meet the 
requirements or specifications provided in the contract.
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5.8 Ordinary share capital

5.9 Loans and borrowings

5.9.1

5.9.2

5.10 Leases as 'lessor'

5.11 Ijarah transactions

Loans and borrowings, except for loans from directors and sponsors specified in note 5.9.2, are classified as 'financial
liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred,
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with any difference
between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective mark-up 

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as deduction from equity.

Ujrah payments under an Ijarah are recognized as an expense in the statements of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the Ijarah terms unless another systematic basis are representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit, even if the
payments are not on that basis.

The Company enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment property. The Company also leasesout
its machinery. 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease receivables, except for credit-
impairedfinancial assets for which interest income is calculated with reference to their amortized cost (i.e. after a deduction of
the loss allowance). 

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Company appliesIFRS15 – Revenue from Contracts with
Customers to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.

Interest free loans from directors and sponsors, for which there is no agreed schedule or tenor for repayment and which are
repayable at the Company's discretion, are recognized as equity. These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are
measured at cost.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial directcosts
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amountof the leased asset and recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at
the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated unguaranteed residual value and applies the
impairment requirements of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, recognizing an allowance for expected credit losses on the
lease receivables. 

5.12 Trade and other payables

5.12.1 Financial liabilities

5.12.2 Non-financial liabilities

These are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair
value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initialrecognition, these are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in statement of profit or loss.

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

5.13 Provisions and contingencies

5.14 Trade and other receivables
5.14.1 Financial assets

5.14.2 Non-financial assets

5.15 Contracts with Customers

5.15.1 Revenue

5.15.2 Contract assets

5.15.3 Contract liabilities

5.16 Comprehensive income

These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at fair value at the date of
transaction, plus attributable transaction costs, except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component,
which are measured at undiscounted invoice price. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

obligations, including significant payment terms Revenue recognition policies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that outflow of resources embodyingeconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be madeof the amountof obligation.The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, or where a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is 

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is madeor the payment is due
if a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Comprehensiveincome is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from
transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income ['OCI'].OCIcomprises items of income and expense, including reclassification
adjustments, that are not recognized in statement of profit or loss as required or permitted by accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and is presented in 'statement of comprehensive income'.

Contract assets represent work performed up to the reporting date which has not been invoiced to customers because the
related performance obligations remain partially unsatisfied as at the reporting date.

Yarn, Raw cotton, Polyester, 
Waste

Revenue is recognized at a point in
time when the goods are
dispatched to customers.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognizes revenue
from a contract with customer when the Companysatisfies an obligationspecified in that contract. The following table provides
information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including
significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance
Product/service

Performance obligations are satisfied when goods are 
dispatched to the customers. Invoices are generated at 
that point in time and are usually payable within a period 
ranging from 30 days to 120 days. There are no customer 
loyalty programs or warranty provisions. However, some 
contracts allow for return of goods if those do not meet the 
requirements or specifications provided in the contract.
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5.17 Borrowing costs

5.18 Income tax

5.18.1 Current taxation

5.18.2 Deferred taxation

5.19 Earnings per share ['EPS']

5.20 Cash and cash equivalents

5.21 Segment reporting

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of
previous years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits,
rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is
recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the' balance sheet approach' providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the
effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the
treatment prescribed by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A
deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPSis calculated by adjusting basic EPSby the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of timeto get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such timeas the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in statement of
comprehensive income.

5.22 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Companyusing exchange rate prevailing at the
date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the fair value is
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are
translated to functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of initial recognition. Any gain or loss arising on
translation of foreign currency transactions and balances is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at banks. Interest income
on cash and cash equivalents is recognized using effective interest method.

Segment reporting is based on the operating segments that are reported in the manner consistent with internal reporting of the
Company. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to makedecisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is
available. The Company is a single operating segment based on internal reporting to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

5.23 Impairment

5.23.1 Financial assets

5.23.2 Non-financial assets

5.24 Dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders

5.25 Fair value measurements

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial
condition and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss.

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of
initial recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial asset.

Impairmentis recognized at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairmentis recognized at an
amount equal to twelve months' expected credit losses, with the exception of trade receivables, for which the Company
recognizes lifetime expected credit losses estimated using internal credit risk grading based on the Company's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic conditions, and an assessment for both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where 

All impairmentlosses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairmentloss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the financial 
asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amountof an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marketassessments of the timevalue of money and the risks specific
to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairmentlosses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Impairmentlosses recognized in respect of
cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairmentlosses
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairmentloss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in determiningthe recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been 

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in statement of changes in equity and
as a liability, to the extent it is unclaimed/unpaid,in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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5.17 Borrowing costs

5.18 Income tax

5.18.1 Current taxation

5.18.2 Deferred taxation

5.19 Earnings per share ['EPS']

5.20 Cash and cash equivalents

5.21 Segment reporting

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of
previous years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits,
rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is
recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the' balance sheet approach' providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the
effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the
treatment prescribed by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A
deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPSis calculated by adjusting basic EPSby the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of timeto get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such timeas the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in statement of
comprehensive income.

5.22 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Companyusing exchange rate prevailing at the
date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the fair value is
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are
translated to functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of initial recognition. Any gain or loss arising on
translation of foreign currency transactions and balances is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at banks. Interest income
on cash and cash equivalents is recognized using effective interest method.

Segment reporting is based on the operating segments that are reported in the manner consistent with internal reporting of the
Company. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to makedecisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is
available. The Company is a single operating segment based on internal reporting to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

5.23 Impairment

5.23.1 Financial assets

5.23.2 Non-financial assets

5.24 Dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders

5.25 Fair value measurements

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial
condition and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss.

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of
initial recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial asset.

Impairmentis recognized at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairmentis recognized at an
amount equal to twelve months' expected credit losses, with the exception of trade receivables, for which the Company
recognizes lifetime expected credit losses estimated using internal credit risk grading based on the Company's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic conditions, and an assessment for both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where 

All impairmentlosses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairmentloss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the financial 
asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amountof an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marketassessments of the timevalue of money and the risks specific
to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairmentlosses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Impairmentlosses recognized in respect of
cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairmentlosses
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairmentloss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in determiningthe recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been 

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in statement of changes in equity and
as a liability, to the extent it is unclaimed/unpaid,in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

6 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

30-Jun-23 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
No. of shares Rupees Rupees

87,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 870,000,000     870,000,000      

87,000,000  870,000,000     870,000,000      

7 ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

30-Jun-23 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
No. of shares Rupees Rupees

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
48,000,000  Issued for cash 480,000,000     480,000,000      
38,577,920  Issued as fully paid bonus shares 385,779,200     385,779,200      

86,577,920  865,779,200     865,779,200      

8 SHARE PREMIUM

38,577,920     

86,577,920     

This represents premiumon issue of ordinary shares recognized under Section 83(1) of the repealed CompaniesOrdinance,
1984 (now Section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017).

No. of shares

48,000,000     

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizethe use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors
that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long
positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liabilityfall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurementis categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which
the change has occurred.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received. If the Companydetermines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the
measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market
data or the transaction is closed out.

When one is available, the Companymeasures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

87,000,000     

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-24
No. of shares

87,000,000     

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

9 REVALUATION RESERVE

As at beginning of the year 1,133,626,295  1,158,769,554   

Surplus recognized during the year
Surplus for the year -                   -                                         
Deferred taxation -                   -                                         

-                   -                                         
Incremental depreciation transferred to accumulated profits

Incremental depreciation for the year (33,642,389)     (35,413,041)             
Deferred taxation 9,756,293         10,269,782               

(23,886,096)     (25,143,259)       

Other adjustments
Deferred tax adjustment attributable to changes in proportion of 

income taxation under final tax regime -                   -                     

As at end of the year 1,109,740,199  1,133,626,295   

10 LOAN FROM SPONSORS

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

11 LONG TERM FINANCES

These represent secured long term finances utilized under
interest arrangements from banking companies

Term Finances ['TF']

TF - I 11.1 6,385,000         6,385,000          
TF - II 11.2 316,088,000     316,088,000      
TF - III 11.3 -                   -                     
TF - IV 11.4 -                   -                     
TF - V 11.5 40,000,000       40,000,000        
TF - VI 11.6 229,453,080     229,453,080      
TF - VII 11.7 14,828,082       13,729,706        
TF - VIII 11.8 646,788,303     646,788,303      
TF - IX 11.9 197,191,597     197,191,597      
TF - X 11.10 32,222,833       29,835,956        

1,482,956,895  1,479,471,642   

Diminishing Musharaka ['DM']

DM - I 11.11 25,653,278       25,653,278        
DM - II 11.12 146,703,000     146,703,000      

. 172,356,278     172,356,278      

1,655,313,173  1,651,827,920   
Current portion presented under current liabilities 19 (65,559,779)     (65,559,779)       

1,589,753,394  1,586,268,141   

This represents loan obtained from sponsors. These are interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company subject to
subordination arrangements with providers of debt finances. These loans are presented as equity as per "Technical Release 32 
- Accounting for Directors' Loan" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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48,000,000     

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizethe use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors
that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received. If the Companydetermines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the
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Deferred taxation 9,756,293         10,269,782               

(23,886,096)     (25,143,259)       

Other adjustments
Deferred tax adjustment attributable to changes in proportion of 

income taxation under final tax regime -                   -                     

As at end of the year 1,109,740,199  1,133,626,295   

10 LOAN FROM SPONSORS

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

11 LONG TERM FINANCES

These represent secured long term finances utilized under
interest arrangements from banking companies

Term Finances ['TF']

TF - I 11.1 6,385,000         6,385,000          
TF - II 11.2 316,088,000     316,088,000      
TF - III 11.3 -                   -                     
TF - IV 11.4 -                   -                     
TF - V 11.5 40,000,000       40,000,000        
TF - VI 11.6 229,453,080     229,453,080      
TF - VII 11.7 14,828,082       13,729,706        
TF - VIII 11.8 646,788,303     646,788,303      
TF - IX 11.9 197,191,597     197,191,597      
TF - X 11.10 32,222,833       29,835,956        

1,482,956,895  1,479,471,642   

Diminishing Musharaka ['DM']

DM - I 11.11 25,653,278       25,653,278        
DM - II 11.12 146,703,000     146,703,000      

. 172,356,278     172,356,278      

1,655,313,173  1,651,827,920   
Current portion presented under current liabilities 19 (65,559,779)     (65,559,779)       

1,589,753,394  1,586,268,141   

This represents loan obtained from sponsors. These are interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company subject to
subordination arrangements with providers of debt finances. These loans are presented as equity as per "Technical Release 32 
- Accounting for Directors' Loan" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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11.3

11.4

11.5
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TF - IV was obtained from Faysal Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and was secured by charge over
operating"&" fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carried interest at
rates ranging from a fixed rate of 5.6% to three months KIBORplus 1% (30-Jun-23: 5.6% to three months KIBORplus 1%) per
annum, payable quarterly. The finance was originally repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installment
due in July 2020. During the previous year, entire outstanding liability amounting to Rs. 178.554 million was converted into
diminishingmusharakah facilities (see note 11.11 & 11.12). As a result of this arrangement, the payment of accrued interest on
TF - IV is deferred whereby the interest payments are to be made in twenty three stepped up quarterly installments with first
installmentdue in December2020. (See note 14). The Company has defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon
is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - V has been obtained from Habib Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries interest at one 
monthKIBORplus 1% per annum(30-Jun-23: one monthKIBORplus 1% per annum) payable monthly. The finance is repayable
in forty equal monthly installments with the first installmentdue in April 2020. The Company, in previous years, has defaulted in
repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is 

TF - VI has been obtained from The Bank of Punjab on conversion of short term borrowing, lease liabilityand restructuring of
long term finance and is secured by charge over fixed and current assets of the company, existing ownership of leased assets 
and personal guarantees of Company's Directors.The finance carries interest at the lender's cost of funds, payable quarterly.
The finance is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in December2021. The Company
has defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the
reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - VII represents accrued interest on short term borrowings and lease liabilityobtained from The Bank of Punjabfrozen on the
request of the managementand converted into long term finance. The finance is secured by charge over current and fixed
assets of the Company, existing ownership of leased assets and personal guarantee of the Company'sDirector. The finance
carries no interest. The finance is repayable in four equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in December2026.
The finance has been carried at amortized cost which has been determined using a discount rate of 8%. The case is under
litigation. 

TF - II has been obtained from MCB Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors and personal guarantees of the Company's
Directors. The finance carries interest at 8% (30-Jun-23: 8%) per annum, payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twenty
equal quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2020. The Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance
and interest thereon and is under litigation. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date.

TF - IIIwas obtained from NationalBank of Pakistan on conversion of short term borrowings and was secured by charge over
operating fixed assets of the Companyand personal guarantees of the Company's Directors and pledge of 25% shares of Hira
Textile Mills Limited.The finance carried interest at rates ranging from 5% to 8% (30-Jun-23: 5% to 8%) per annum, payable
quarterly. The finance was originally repayable in twenty equal quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2020.
However, during the year, entire outstanding principal liability amounting to Rs. 466.788 million and short term borrowings
amountingto Rs. 180 millionwere converted into a demand finance facility (see note 11.8). As a result of this arrangement, the
payment of accrued interest on TF - III is deferred whereby the interest payments are to be made in eight equal quarterly
installments with first installment due in September 2030. (See note 14). The loan is currently under litigation

TF - I has been obtained from Askari Bank Limited to finance capital expenditure and is secured by charge over operating fixed
assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The finance
carries interest at 5% per annum(30-Jun-23: 5% per annum) payable quarterly. The finance was originally repayable in twelve
equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in February 2019. However, effective February 2020 the lender
approved principal deferral for a period of one year under the State Bank of Pakistan BPRD circular No. 14 of 2020.
Accordingly, the principal repayment after the expiry of deferral period commenced in February 2021. The Company has
defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon and is under litigation. Amount of principal and interest theron is 

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Face value of loan 18,496,000       18,496,000        
Unamortized notional interest 11.7.1 (3,667,918)       (4,766,294)         

As at end of the year 14,828,082       13,729,706        

11.7.1 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year 4,766,294         5,783,310          
Amortized during the year (1,098,376)       (1,017,016)         

As at end of the year 3,667,918         4,766,294          

11.8

11.9

11.10

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Face value of loan 18 44,503,495       44,503,495        
Unamortized notional interest 11.10.1 (12,280,662)     (14,667,539)       

As at end of the year 32,222,833       29,835,956        

11.10.1 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year 14,667,539       16,877,609        
Recognized during the year -                   -                     
Amortized during the year (2,386,877)       (2,210,070)         

As at end of the year 12,280,662       14,667,539        

11.11 DM - I has been obtained from Faysal Bank Limited on restructuring of long term finance and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets and current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The finance
carries interest at 5.6% (30-Jun-23: 5.6%) per annum, whereby the interest payments are to be made in fourteen equal
quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2026 (see note 14). The finance is repayable in eight equal quarterly
installments with the first installment due in December 2020. The Company has defaulted in repayment of this finance and
interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - VIII has been obtained from National Bank of Pakistan on restructuring of long term finance and coversion of short term
borrowings and is secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company,andpersonal guarantees of the Company's
Directors and pledge of 25% shares of Hira Textile MillsLimited.The finance carries interest at 7.9% per annum, whereby the
interest payments are to be made in eight equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in September2030 (see note
14. The finance is repayable in twenty eight equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in September 2023. The
Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as
at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - IX has been obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets, present and future current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's
Directors. The finance carries interest at 6.06% per annum, whereby the interest payments are to be made in thirty six equal
monthly installments with the first installmentdue in September 2024 (see note 14). The finance is repayable in seventy one
step up monthly installments with the first installment due in October 2021. The Company has defaulted in repayment of this
finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - X represents accrued interest on short term borrowings obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited frozen on the request of the
managementand converted into long term finance. The finance is secured by by charge over operating fixed assets, present
and future current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries no
interest. The finance is repayable in twenty four equal monthly installmentswith the first installmentdue in September 2027. The
finance has been carried at amortized cost which has been determined using a discount rate of 6.06%.  The matter is under 
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TF - IV was obtained from Faysal Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and was secured by charge over
operating"&" fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carried interest at
rates ranging from a fixed rate of 5.6% to three months KIBORplus 1% (30-Jun-23: 5.6% to three months KIBORplus 1%) per
annum, payable quarterly. The finance was originally repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installment
due in July 2020. During the previous year, entire outstanding liability amounting to Rs. 178.554 million was converted into
diminishingmusharakah facilities (see note 11.11 & 11.12). As a result of this arrangement, the payment of accrued interest on
TF - IV is deferred whereby the interest payments are to be made in twenty three stepped up quarterly installments with first
installmentdue in December2020. (See note 14). The Company has defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon
is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - V has been obtained from Habib Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries interest at one 
monthKIBORplus 1% per annum(30-Jun-23: one monthKIBORplus 1% per annum) payable monthly. The finance is repayable
in forty equal monthly installments with the first installmentdue in April 2020. The Company, in previous years, has defaulted in
repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is 

TF - VI has been obtained from The Bank of Punjab on conversion of short term borrowing, lease liabilityand restructuring of
long term finance and is secured by charge over fixed and current assets of the company, existing ownership of leased assets 
and personal guarantees of Company's Directors.The finance carries interest at the lender's cost of funds, payable quarterly.
The finance is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in December2021. The Company
has defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the
reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - VII represents accrued interest on short term borrowings and lease liabilityobtained from The Bank of Punjabfrozen on the
request of the managementand converted into long term finance. The finance is secured by charge over current and fixed
assets of the Company, existing ownership of leased assets and personal guarantee of the Company'sDirector. The finance
carries no interest. The finance is repayable in four equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in December2026.
The finance has been carried at amortized cost which has been determined using a discount rate of 8%. The case is under
litigation. 

TF - II has been obtained from MCB Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors and personal guarantees of the Company's
Directors. The finance carries interest at 8% (30-Jun-23: 8%) per annum, payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twenty
equal quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2020. The Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance
and interest thereon and is under litigation. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date.

TF - IIIwas obtained from NationalBank of Pakistan on conversion of short term borrowings and was secured by charge over
operating fixed assets of the Companyand personal guarantees of the Company's Directors and pledge of 25% shares of Hira
Textile Mills Limited.The finance carried interest at rates ranging from 5% to 8% (30-Jun-23: 5% to 8%) per annum, payable
quarterly. The finance was originally repayable in twenty equal quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2020.
However, during the year, entire outstanding principal liability amounting to Rs. 466.788 million and short term borrowings
amountingto Rs. 180 millionwere converted into a demand finance facility (see note 11.8). As a result of this arrangement, the
payment of accrued interest on TF - III is deferred whereby the interest payments are to be made in eight equal quarterly
installments with first installment due in September 2030. (See note 14). The loan is currently under litigation

TF - I has been obtained from Askari Bank Limited to finance capital expenditure and is secured by charge over operating fixed
assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The finance
carries interest at 5% per annum(30-Jun-23: 5% per annum) payable quarterly. The finance was originally repayable in twelve
equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in February 2019. However, effective February 2020 the lender
approved principal deferral for a period of one year under the State Bank of Pakistan BPRD circular No. 14 of 2020.
Accordingly, the principal repayment after the expiry of deferral period commenced in February 2021. The Company has
defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon and is under litigation. Amount of principal and interest theron is 

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Face value of loan 18,496,000       18,496,000        
Unamortized notional interest 11.7.1 (3,667,918)       (4,766,294)         

As at end of the year 14,828,082       13,729,706        

11.7.1 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year 4,766,294         5,783,310          
Amortized during the year (1,098,376)       (1,017,016)         

As at end of the year 3,667,918         4,766,294          

11.8

11.9

11.10

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Face value of loan 18 44,503,495       44,503,495        
Unamortized notional interest 11.10.1 (12,280,662)     (14,667,539)       

As at end of the year 32,222,833       29,835,956        

11.10.1 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year 14,667,539       16,877,609        
Recognized during the year -                   -                     
Amortized during the year (2,386,877)       (2,210,070)         

As at end of the year 12,280,662       14,667,539        

11.11 DM - I has been obtained from Faysal Bank Limited on restructuring of long term finance and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets and current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The finance
carries interest at 5.6% (30-Jun-23: 5.6%) per annum, whereby the interest payments are to be made in fourteen equal
quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2026 (see note 14). The finance is repayable in eight equal quarterly
installments with the first installment due in December 2020. The Company has defaulted in repayment of this finance and
interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - VIII has been obtained from National Bank of Pakistan on restructuring of long term finance and coversion of short term
borrowings and is secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company,andpersonal guarantees of the Company's
Directors and pledge of 25% shares of Hira Textile MillsLimited.The finance carries interest at 7.9% per annum, whereby the
interest payments are to be made in eight equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in September2030 (see note
14. The finance is repayable in twenty eight equal quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in September 2023. The
Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as
at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - IX has been obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets, present and future current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's
Directors. The finance carries interest at 6.06% per annum, whereby the interest payments are to be made in thirty six equal
monthly installments with the first installmentdue in September 2024 (see note 14). The finance is repayable in seventy one
step up monthly installments with the first installment due in October 2021. The Company has defaulted in repayment of this
finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

TF - X represents accrued interest on short term borrowings obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited frozen on the request of the
managementand converted into long term finance. The finance is secured by by charge over operating fixed assets, present
and future current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries no
interest. The finance is repayable in twenty four equal monthly installmentswith the first installmentdue in September 2027. The
finance has been carried at amortized cost which has been determined using a discount rate of 6.06%.  The matter is under 
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11.12

11.13

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

12 LEASE LIABILITIES

Present value of minimum lease payments 12.1 & 12.2 3,136,406         3,136,406          
Current portion presented under current liabilities 12.1 & 12.2 (1,498,208)       (749,104)            

1,638,198         2,387,302          

12.1

12.2

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Not later than one year 753,722            753,722             
Later than one year but not later than five years 3,054,545         3,054,545          

Total future minimum lease payments 3,808,267         3,808,267          
Finance charge allocated to future periods (671,861)          (671,861)            

Present value of future minimum lease payments 3,136,406         3,136,406          
Not later than one year 19 (1,498,208)       (749,104)            

Later than one year but not later than five years 1,638,198         2,387,302          

13 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

For mortgages and charges on assets as security for liabilities, refer to note 48 to the financial statements.

These represent vehicles and machinery acquired under finance lease arrangements. The leases are priced at six months
KIBORplus 1.5% (30-Jun-23: ranging from six months KIBORplus 1.5%) per annum.Lease rentals are payable monthly over a
tenor ranging from 4 to 5 years. Under the terms of agreement, taxes, repairs, replacements and insurance costs in respect of
assets subject to finance lease are borne by the Company. The Companyalso has the option to acquire these assets at the end
of their respective lease terms by adjusting the deposit amountagainst the residual value of the asset and intends to exercise
the option. Installments due during the year remained unpaid.

The amountof future payments under the finance lease arrangements and the period in which these payments will become due
are as follows:

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its workers who have completed the
minimumqualifying service period. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sumbenefit equal to last drawn monthlygross
salary for each year of service to scheme members whereas the members of the scheme are not required to make any
contributions to the scheme. The scheme is administered by the management of the Company under the supervision and
directions of the Board of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents
present value of defined benefit obligation. The Company has paid all employee retirement benefits up to 30 June 2022. No 

DM - II has been obtained from Faysal Bank Limited on restructuring of long term finance and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets and current assets of the Company, personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance
carries interest at 5.6% (30-Jun-23: 5.6%) per annum, whereby the interest payments are to be made in fourteen equal
quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in June 2026 (see note 14).The finance is repayable in twenty eight equal
quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in December 2022. The Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance
and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

13.2 Charge to profit or loss

Current service cost -                   -                     
Interest cost -                   -                     

-                   -                     

13.3 The charge to profit or loss has been allocated as follows

Cost of sales 31 -                   -                     

-                   -                     

13.4 Remeasurements recognized in statement of comprehensive income

Actuarial loss arising from changes in:
Experience adjustments -                   -                     

-                   -                     

13.5 Principal actuarial assumptions

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Discount rate 0.00% 0.00%
Expected rates of increase in salary 0.00% 0.00%

14 DEFERRED INTEREST

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year -                   175,751,943      
Amortization of Notional Interest -                   131,554,536      
Transferred from accrued interest 18 -                   -                     
Transferred to accrued interest 18 -                   (307,306,479)     

-                   -                     
Unamortized notional interest 14.1 -                   - 

As at end of the year -                   - 

This represents interest on long term finances accrued but not payable within twelve months from the reporting date. See note
TF - III, TF - IV, TF - VIII, TF - IX, DM - I and DM - II. 

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at 30 June
2021 was based on actuarial valuation carried out by independent actuaries. The principal assumptions used in determining
present value of defined benefit obligation are:

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

13.1 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
Charged to profit or loss for the year 13.2 -                   -                     
Benefits paid during the year -                   -                     
Actuarial loss arising during the year -                   -                     

As at end of the year -                   -                     
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

12 LEASE LIABILITIES

Present value of minimum lease payments 12.1 & 12.2 3,136,406         3,136,406          
Current portion presented under current liabilities 12.1 & 12.2 (1,498,208)       (749,104)            

1,638,198         2,387,302          

12.1

12.2

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Not later than one year 753,722            753,722             
Later than one year but not later than five years 3,054,545         3,054,545          

Total future minimum lease payments 3,808,267         3,808,267          
Finance charge allocated to future periods (671,861)          (671,861)            

Present value of future minimum lease payments 3,136,406         3,136,406          
Not later than one year 19 (1,498,208)       (749,104)            

Later than one year but not later than five years 1,638,198         2,387,302          

13 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

For mortgages and charges on assets as security for liabilities, refer to note 48 to the financial statements.

These represent vehicles and machinery acquired under finance lease arrangements. The leases are priced at six months
KIBORplus 1.5% (30-Jun-23: ranging from six months KIBORplus 1.5%) per annum.Lease rentals are payable monthly over a
tenor ranging from 4 to 5 years. Under the terms of agreement, taxes, repairs, replacements and insurance costs in respect of
assets subject to finance lease are borne by the Company. The Companyalso has the option to acquire these assets at the end
of their respective lease terms by adjusting the deposit amountagainst the residual value of the asset and intends to exercise
the option. Installments due during the year remained unpaid.

The amountof future payments under the finance lease arrangements and the period in which these payments will become due
are as follows:

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its workers who have completed the
minimumqualifying service period. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sumbenefit equal to last drawn monthlygross
salary for each year of service to scheme members whereas the members of the scheme are not required to make any
contributions to the scheme. The scheme is administered by the management of the Company under the supervision and
directions of the Board of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents
present value of defined benefit obligation. The Company has paid all employee retirement benefits up to 30 June 2022. No 

DM - II has been obtained from Faysal Bank Limited on restructuring of long term finance and is secured by charge over
operating fixed assets and current assets of the Company, personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance
carries interest at 5.6% (30-Jun-23: 5.6%) per annum, whereby the interest payments are to be made in fourteen equal
quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in June 2026 (see note 14).The finance is repayable in twenty eight equal
quarterly installmentswith the first installmentdue in December 2022. The Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance
and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

13.2 Charge to profit or loss

Current service cost -                   -                     
Interest cost -                   -                     

-                   -                     

13.3 The charge to profit or loss has been allocated as follows

Cost of sales 31 -                   -                     

-                   -                     

13.4 Remeasurements recognized in statement of comprehensive income

Actuarial loss arising from changes in:
Experience adjustments -                   -                     

-                   -                     

13.5 Principal actuarial assumptions

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Discount rate 0.00% 0.00%
Expected rates of increase in salary 0.00% 0.00%

14 DEFERRED INTEREST

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year -                   175,751,943      
Amortization of Notional Interest -                   131,554,536      
Transferred from accrued interest 18 -                   -                     
Transferred to accrued interest 18 -                   (307,306,479)     

-                   -                     
Unamortized notional interest 14.1 -                   - 

As at end of the year -                   - 

This represents interest on long term finances accrued but not payable within twelve months from the reporting date. See note
TF - III, TF - IV, TF - VIII, TF - IX, DM - I and DM - II. 

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at 30 June
2021 was based on actuarial valuation carried out by independent actuaries. The principal assumptions used in determining
present value of defined benefit obligation are:

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

13.1 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
Charged to profit or loss for the year 13.2 -                   -                     
Benefits paid during the year -                   -                     
Actuarial loss arising during the year -                   -                     

As at end of the year -                   -                     
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

14.1 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year -                   131,554,536      
Recognized during the year -                   -                     
Amortization for the year -                   (131,554,536)     

As at end of the year -                   -                     

15 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences 15.1 522,776,464     538,661,311      
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences 15.1 (180,502,664)   (168,814,834)     

342,273,800     369,846,477      

15.1 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

As at Recognized in Recognized As at
01-Jul-23 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-24
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 524,558,909     (15,030,131)     -                   509,528,778      
Right-of-used assets 14,102,402       (854,716)          -                   13,247,686        
Long term investment -                   -                   -                   -                     

538,661,311     (15,884,847)     -                   522,776,464      
Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits -                   -                   -                   -                     
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses -                   -                   -                   -                     
Unused tax losses and credits (168,814,834)   (11,687,830)     -                   (180,502,664)     

(168,814,834)   (11,687,830)     -                   (180,502,664)     

Note: 37 369,846,477     (27,572,677)     -                   342,273,800      

As at Recognized in Recognized As at
01-Jul-22 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 486,433,010     38,125,899       -                   524,558,909      
Right-of-used assets 12,944,041       1,158,361         -                   14,102,402        
Long term investment -                   -                   -                   -                     

499,377,051     39,284,260       -                   538,661,311      
Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits -                   -                   -                   -                     
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses (415,989)          415,989            -                   -                     
Unused tax losses and credits (141,150,283)   (27,664,551)     -                   (168,814,834)     

(141,566,272)   (27,248,562)     -                   (168,814,834)     

Note: 37 357,810,779     12,035,698       -                   369,846,477      

30-June-24

30-Jun-23

15.2

15.3 Unrecognized deferred tax assets

15.3.1

15.3.2 Unused tax losses and credits for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized expire as follows:

Nature 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Tax losses                       -          153,141,550 
Tax losses   1,166,028,867     1,166,028,867 
Tax losses        96,909,873          96,909,873 
Tax losses      108,143,118        108,143,118 
Tax losses      634,096,807        519,046,933 
Tax losses        85,748,462          59,370,530 
Tax losses 178,434,437                            -   

  2,269,361,564     2,102,640,871 

Tax credits                       -            21,950,609 
Tax credits                       -              3,996,894 
Tax credits                       -                 527,500 
Tax credits                       -                          -   

                      -            26,475,003 

  2,269,361,564     2,129,115,874 

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 180,048,887     180,765,534      
Accrued liabilities 36,171,185       51,645,980        
Advances from customers 15,912,024       15,912,024        
Gas infrastructure development cess 16.1 73,900,000       73,900,000        
Payable to Provident Fund Trust 1,699,457         1,699,457          
Sales tax payable -                   -                     
Due to related party 16.2 90,265,590       36,278,887        
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 781,124            781,124             
Workers' Welfare Fund 16.4 2,480,053         2,480,053          
Other payables 16.3 45,752,780       47,258,987        

447,011,100     410,722,045      

2029

2025
2026

2024
2025

2027

Deferred tax arising from timing differences pertaining to income from business is provided for only that portion of timing
differences that represent income taxable under normal provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the Ordinance'] as
revenue from export sales of the Company is subject to taxation under the final tax regime, while the remaining portion of
revenue attracts assessment under normal provisions of the Ordinance. These differences are calculated at that proportion of
total timingdifferences that the local sales, other than the indirect exports taxable under section 154 (3) of the Ordinance, bear
to the total sales revenue based on historical and future trends. Deferred tax has been calculated at 29% (30-Jun-23: 29%) of
the timing differences so determined based on tax rates notified by the Government of Pakistan for future tax years.

Tax year

2026

Deferred tax asset on long term investment amounting to Rs. 64.206 million (30-Jun-23: Rs. 64.206 million) has not been
recognized as sufficient taxable profits are not expected to be available in future against which these could be utilized.

2027

2024

2028

2030

16.1

16.2 This represents advances obtained from a related party, against rent on assets leased out to the related party under operating
lease arrangement.

This represents cess levied, through the Gas Infrastructure DevelopmentCess ['GIDC']Act, 2011 later re-imposed by the Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015, the recovery of which has been stayed by the High Court of Sindh. (see note 
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

14.1 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year -                   131,554,536      
Recognized during the year -                   -                     
Amortization for the year -                   (131,554,536)     

As at end of the year -                   -                     

15 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences 15.1 522,776,464     538,661,311      
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences 15.1 (180,502,664)   (168,814,834)     

342,273,800     369,846,477      

15.1 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

As at Recognized in Recognized As at
01-Jul-23 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-24
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 524,558,909     (15,030,131)     -                   509,528,778      
Right-of-used assets 14,102,402       (854,716)          -                   13,247,686        
Long term investment -                   -                   -                   -                     

538,661,311     (15,884,847)     -                   522,776,464      
Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits -                   -                   -                   -                     
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses -                   -                   -                   -                     
Unused tax losses and credits (168,814,834)   (11,687,830)     -                   (180,502,664)     

(168,814,834)   (11,687,830)     -                   (180,502,664)     

Note: 37 369,846,477     (27,572,677)     -                   342,273,800      

As at Recognized in Recognized As at
01-Jul-22 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 486,433,010     38,125,899       -                   524,558,909      
Right-of-used assets 12,944,041       1,158,361         -                   14,102,402        
Long term investment -                   -                   -                   -                     

499,377,051     39,284,260       -                   538,661,311      
Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits -                   -                   -                   -                     
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses (415,989)          415,989            -                   -                     
Unused tax losses and credits (141,150,283)   (27,664,551)     -                   (168,814,834)     

(141,566,272)   (27,248,562)     -                   (168,814,834)     

Note: 37 357,810,779     12,035,698       -                   369,846,477      

30-June-24

30-Jun-23

15.2

15.3 Unrecognized deferred tax assets

15.3.1

15.3.2 Unused tax losses and credits for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized expire as follows:

Nature 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Tax losses                       -          153,141,550 
Tax losses   1,166,028,867     1,166,028,867 
Tax losses        96,909,873          96,909,873 
Tax losses      108,143,118        108,143,118 
Tax losses      634,096,807        519,046,933 
Tax losses        85,748,462          59,370,530 
Tax losses 178,434,437                            -   

  2,269,361,564     2,102,640,871 

Tax credits                       -            21,950,609 
Tax credits                       -              3,996,894 
Tax credits                       -                 527,500 
Tax credits                       -                          -   

                      -            26,475,003 

  2,269,361,564     2,129,115,874 

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 180,048,887     180,765,534      
Accrued liabilities 36,171,185       51,645,980        
Advances from customers 15,912,024       15,912,024        
Gas infrastructure development cess 16.1 73,900,000       73,900,000        
Payable to Provident Fund Trust 1,699,457         1,699,457          
Sales tax payable -                   -                     
Due to related party 16.2 90,265,590       36,278,887        
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 781,124            781,124             
Workers' Welfare Fund 16.4 2,480,053         2,480,053          
Other payables 16.3 45,752,780       47,258,987        

447,011,100     410,722,045      

2029

2025
2026

2024
2025

2027

Deferred tax arising from timing differences pertaining to income from business is provided for only that portion of timing
differences that represent income taxable under normal provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the Ordinance'] as
revenue from export sales of the Company is subject to taxation under the final tax regime, while the remaining portion of
revenue attracts assessment under normal provisions of the Ordinance. These differences are calculated at that proportion of
total timingdifferences that the local sales, other than the indirect exports taxable under section 154 (3) of the Ordinance, bear
to the total sales revenue based on historical and future trends. Deferred tax has been calculated at 29% (30-Jun-23: 29%) of
the timing differences so determined based on tax rates notified by the Government of Pakistan for future tax years.

Tax year

2026

Deferred tax asset on long term investment amounting to Rs. 64.206 million (30-Jun-23: Rs. 64.206 million) has not been
recognized as sufficient taxable profits are not expected to be available in future against which these could be utilized.

2027

2024

2028

2030

16.1

16.2 This represents advances obtained from a related party, against rent on assets leased out to the related party under operating
lease arrangement.

This represents cess levied, through the Gas Infrastructure DevelopmentCess ['GIDC']Act, 2011 later re-imposed by the Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015, the recovery of which has been stayed by the High Court of Sindh. (see note 
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16.3

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

16.4 Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year 2,480,053         2,480,053          
Charged to profit or loss for the year 34 -                   -                     

As at end of the year 2,480,053         2,480,053          

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

17 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

These represent short term finances utilized under
interest arrangements from banking companies.

Running finances 17.1 214,970,742     214,970,742      
Term loans 17.2 120,000,000     120,000,000      

334,970,742     334,970,742      

17.1

17.2

17.3

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

18 ACCRUED INTEREST/PROFIT

As at beginning of the year 624,595,200     201,952,331      
Expense for the year 36 115,336,390     115,336,390      
Transferred from short term borrowings -                   -                     
Converted to long term finances 11.10 -                   -                     
Transferred to deferred interest 14 -                   -                     
Transferred from deferred interest 14 -                   307,306,479      
Paid during the year -                   -                     

As at end of the year 739,931,590     624,595,200      

This represents current account with a Sponsor of the Company and includes amounts reimbursable to the Sponsor against
expenses paid for on behalf of the Company.

These facilities have been obtained from SAMBA Bank Limited for working capital requirements and are secured by charge
over all present and future current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of sponsors.These carry interest at one
month KIBORplus 2.25% per annum (30-Jun-22: one month KIBORplus 2.25% per annum), payable monthly. Amount of short
term borrowings of Rs.198.192 million was converted into long term finances during year 2021-2022 (seenote11.9).The
Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as
at the reporting date and is under litigation.

These facilities have been obtained from NIB B k Limited (now, MCB Bank Limited)for working capital requirements and are
secured by charge over all present and future current, fixed assets of the Company.These carry interest at rates ranging from
5%to 15.13% (30-Jun-23: 5% to 15.13%)per annum,payable quarterly. Amount of short term borrowings of Rs.180 millionwas
converted into long term finances during year 2021-2022 (See note11.8). The Company has defaulted in repayment of this
finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

All short term borrowing facilities stand expired as at the reporting date.

18.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

19 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances 11 65,559,779       65,559,779        
Lease liabilities 12 1,498,208         749,104             

67,057,987       66,308,883        

Accrued interest is overdue as at the reporting date.

20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.1 Contingencies

20.1.1

20.1.2

20.1.3

20.1.4

20.1.5

20.1.6

20.1.7

20.1.8

Samba Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 246.381 million,before the High Court of
Lahore vide COS No. 1770/2020. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 150.173 millionbefore the High
Court of Lahore vide COS No. 25832/2020.

Habib Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 42.346 million,before the BankingCourts,
Lahore dated 22 February 2022. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company.

National Bank of Pakistan filed a suit against the Company and others for Recovery of Rs.14.724 million,before the Banking
Courts Lahore filed on 14.01.2021 and remainedpending adjudicationbefore BankingCourt No.V, Lahore.This suit was decreed
by the Banking Court on 11.10.2022. Execution of same is pending before the Banking Court No.V, Lahore. Company has filed
an appeal against said decree vide RFA No.75380/2022 before the Division Bench of Lahore High Court Lahore, which is
pending adjudication. Bank has also filed an appeal vide RFA No.73568/2022,which is also pending. Any final outcome of this
case will be subjected to the final decision of Appeals against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 14.724 million,
before the Banking Courts, Lahore dated 14 January 2021. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being
vigorously and diligently contested by the Company.

Bank Alfalah Limitedhas filed a suit against the Companyand others vide COSNo.35823/2019 for the recovery of Rs. 214.991
Million. This case has been decreed on 12.06.2023 and now execution of same vide Ex.A. # 44248/2023 is pending
adjudication.The Company management has also filed an appeal against decree dated 12.06.2023 vide RFANo.57170/2023
before the Division Bench of Lahore High Court Lahore, which is pending adjudication. Any final outcome of this case will be
subjected to the final decision of Appeal.

The Company vide petition 1085/2021 filed before the High Court of Sindh challenged the recovery of GIDC installments. The
HighCourt of Sindh vide its order dated 03 May 2021 has suspended the recovery of GIDCinstallments.No further date is fixed
for hearing. Further, the Companyvide petition 000/2021 dated 27 July 2021 filed before the HighCourt of Sindh challenged the
levy of GIDCon the ground of the Government's failure to comply with the SupremeCourt's judgmentdated 13 August 2020 in
relation to commencement of work on specified projects. Date of hearing is fixed for 01 October 2021.

MCB Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 491.038 million,before the High Court of
Lahore vide COS No. 28331/2019. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 908.801 millionbefore the High
Court of Lahore vide COS No. 41369/2019.

The Companyreceived a demandorder in respect of detection bill amountingto Rs. 6.7 million.The Company has filed an appeal
before Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority against the said detection bill. The appeal has not been fixed for hearing so far.

NationalBank of Pakistanfiled a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 823.027 million,before the HighCourt
of Lahore vide COS No. 13653/2020. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company.
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16.3

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

16.4 Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year 2,480,053         2,480,053          
Charged to profit or loss for the year 34 -                   -                     

As at end of the year 2,480,053         2,480,053          

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

17 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

These represent short term finances utilized under
interest arrangements from banking companies.

Running finances 17.1 214,970,742     214,970,742      
Term loans 17.2 120,000,000     120,000,000      

334,970,742     334,970,742      

17.1

17.2

17.3

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

18 ACCRUED INTEREST/PROFIT

As at beginning of the year 624,595,200     201,952,331      
Expense for the year 36 115,336,390     115,336,390      
Transferred from short term borrowings -                   -                     
Converted to long term finances 11.10 -                   -                     
Transferred to deferred interest 14 -                   -                     
Transferred from deferred interest 14 -                   307,306,479      
Paid during the year -                   -                     

As at end of the year 739,931,590     624,595,200      

This represents current account with a Sponsor of the Company and includes amounts reimbursable to the Sponsor against
expenses paid for on behalf of the Company.

These facilities have been obtained from SAMBA Bank Limited for working capital requirements and are secured by charge
over all present and future current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of sponsors.These carry interest at one
month KIBORplus 2.25% per annum (30-Jun-22: one month KIBORplus 2.25% per annum), payable monthly. Amount of short
term borrowings of Rs.198.192 million was converted into long term finances during year 2021-2022 (seenote11.9).The
Companyhas defaulted in repayment of this finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as
at the reporting date and is under litigation.

These facilities have been obtained from NIB B k Limited (now, MCB Bank Limited)for working capital requirements and are
secured by charge over all present and future current, fixed assets of the Company.These carry interest at rates ranging from
5%to 15.13% (30-Jun-23: 5% to 15.13%)per annum,payable quarterly. Amount of short term borrowings of Rs.180 millionwas
converted into long term finances during year 2021-2022 (See note11.8). The Company has defaulted in repayment of this
finance and interest thereon. Amount of principal and interest theron is overdue as at the reporting date and is under litigation.

All short term borrowing facilities stand expired as at the reporting date.

18.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

19 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances 11 65,559,779       65,559,779        
Lease liabilities 12 1,498,208         749,104             

67,057,987       66,308,883        

Accrued interest is overdue as at the reporting date.

20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.1 Contingencies

20.1.1

20.1.2

20.1.3

20.1.4

20.1.5

20.1.6

20.1.7

20.1.8

Samba Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 246.381 million,before the High Court of
Lahore vide COS No. 1770/2020. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 150.173 millionbefore the High
Court of Lahore vide COS No. 25832/2020.

Habib Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 42.346 million,before the BankingCourts,
Lahore dated 22 February 2022. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company.

National Bank of Pakistan filed a suit against the Company and others for Recovery of Rs.14.724 million,before the Banking
Courts Lahore filed on 14.01.2021 and remainedpending adjudicationbefore BankingCourt No.V, Lahore.This suit was decreed
by the Banking Court on 11.10.2022. Execution of same is pending before the Banking Court No.V, Lahore. Company has filed
an appeal against said decree vide RFA No.75380/2022 before the Division Bench of Lahore High Court Lahore, which is
pending adjudication. Bank has also filed an appeal vide RFA No.73568/2022,which is also pending. Any final outcome of this
case will be subjected to the final decision of Appeals against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 14.724 million,
before the Banking Courts, Lahore dated 14 January 2021. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being
vigorously and diligently contested by the Company.

Bank Alfalah Limitedhas filed a suit against the Companyand others vide COSNo.35823/2019 for the recovery of Rs. 214.991
Million. This case has been decreed on 12.06.2023 and now execution of same vide Ex.A. # 44248/2023 is pending
adjudication.The Company management has also filed an appeal against decree dated 12.06.2023 vide RFANo.57170/2023
before the Division Bench of Lahore High Court Lahore, which is pending adjudication. Any final outcome of this case will be
subjected to the final decision of Appeal.

The Company vide petition 1085/2021 filed before the High Court of Sindh challenged the recovery of GIDC installments. The
HighCourt of Sindh vide its order dated 03 May 2021 has suspended the recovery of GIDCinstallments.No further date is fixed
for hearing. Further, the Companyvide petition 000/2021 dated 27 July 2021 filed before the HighCourt of Sindh challenged the
levy of GIDCon the ground of the Government's failure to comply with the SupremeCourt's judgmentdated 13 August 2020 in
relation to commencement of work on specified projects. Date of hearing is fixed for 01 October 2021.

MCB Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 491.038 million,before the High Court of
Lahore vide COS No. 28331/2019. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 908.801 millionbefore the High
Court of Lahore vide COS No. 41369/2019.

The Companyreceived a demandorder in respect of detection bill amountingto Rs. 6.7 million.The Company has filed an appeal
before Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority against the said detection bill. The appeal has not been fixed for hearing so far.

NationalBank of Pakistanfiled a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 823.027 million,before the HighCourt
of Lahore vide COS No. 13653/2020. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently
contested by the Company.
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20.1.9

20.1.10

20.1.11

20.1.12

20.1.13

The Bank of Punjab filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 244.943 million,before the High Court of
Lahore vide COSNo. 55735/2022, dated 23 June 2022. This suit is presently pending adjudication.This case is being vigorously
and diligently contested by the Company.

The Bank of Punjab filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 244.943 million, before the High Court of 
Lahore vide COS No. 55735/2022, dated 23 June 2022. This suit is presently pending adjudication.This case is being vigorously 
and diligently contested by the Company.

Additional Commissioner IR passed order U/S 122 (5A) of the income tax ordinance 2001 for the tax year 2018, through which 
tax of Rs. 483,485,421/= was demanded in October 2024. Against this order the Company filed an appeal before the appellate 

DCIR passed assessment order through which sales tax of Rs. 111.74 million and further tax of Rs. 5.739 million and plenty of 
Rs. 11.581 million imposed. The company filed 1st appeal to commissioner appeals which was disposed of and upheld liabili�es of 
principal amount and further tax however plenty was deleted. The company filed second appeal in Appellate Tribunal which is 
pending for adjudica�on.

Various banking companies have issued guarantees on behalf of the Company as detailed below:

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Bank guarantees 29,542,428       29,542,428        

20.2 Commitments

There are no commitments as at 30 June 2024.
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20.1.9

20.1.10

20.1.11

20.1.12

20.1.13

The Bank of Punjab filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 244.943 million,before the High Court of
Lahore vide COSNo. 55735/2022, dated 23 June 2022. This suit is presently pending adjudication.This case is being vigorously
and diligently contested by the Company.

The Bank of Punjab filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 244.943 million, before the High Court of 
Lahore vide COS No. 55735/2022, dated 23 June 2022. This suit is presently pending adjudication.This case is being vigorously 
and diligently contested by the Company.

Additional Commissioner IR passed order U/S 122 (5A) of the income tax ordinance 2001 for the tax year 2018, through which 
tax of Rs. 483,485,421/= was demanded in October 2024. Against this order the Company filed an appeal before the appellate 

DCIR passed assessment order through which sales tax of Rs. 111.74 million and further tax of Rs. 5.739 million and plenty of 
Rs. 11.581 million imposed. The company filed 1st appeal to commissioner appeals which was disposed of and upheld liabili�es of 
principal amount and further tax however plenty was deleted. The company filed second appeal in Appellate Tribunal which is 
pending for adjudica�on.

Various banking companies have issued guarantees on behalf of the Company as detailed below:

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Bank guarantees 29,542,428       29,542,428        

20.2 Commitments

There are no commitments as at 30 June 2024.
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

21.4 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 31 123,482,612     131,142,660      
Administrative expenses 33 2,520,052         2,676,380          

126,002,664     133,819,040      

21.5

Accumulated Net
Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 20,113,708       -                   20,113,708        
Buildings 282,516,493     173,111,916     109,404,577      
Plant and machinery 2,682,271,287  1,437,351,677  1,244,919,610   

2,984,901,488  1,610,463,593  1,374,437,895   

Accumulated Net
Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 20,113,708       -                   20,113,708        
Buildings 282,516,493     167,353,780     115,162,713      
Plant and machinery 2,682,271,287  1,371,829,592  1,310,441,695   

2,984,901,488  1,539,183,372  1,445,718,116   

21.6 As per most recent valuation, forced sale values of freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery are as follows:

Rupees

Freehold land 552,351,250      
Buildings 309,390,489      
Plant and machinery 1,645,175,000   

2,506,916,739   

21.7

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Freehold land -                   27,522,000        
Buildings -                   28,731,311        
Plant and machinery -                   247,334,895      

-                   303,588,205      

Most recent valuation of land, buildings and plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer Messrs Diamond
Surveyors Pakistan as at 30 June 2021. For basis of valuation and other fair value measurement disclosures, refer to note 47.

Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value of revalued items would have been as 

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-23

Operating fixed assets include certain assets leased out under operating lease arrangements to a related party. The net book
values of these assets as at reporting date are as follows:

The portion of land and buildingleased out has not been classified as investment property' under IAS 40 - InvestmentProperty,
as the portion leased out cannot be sold separately and the remaining portion held for manufacturing and administrative
purposes is not insignificant in relation to total area/value of land and buildings owned by the Company.

Annual Report 2024
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

21.4 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 31 123,482,612     131,142,660      
Administrative expenses 33 2,520,052         2,676,380          

126,002,664     133,819,040      

21.5

Accumulated Net
Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 20,113,708       -                   20,113,708        
Buildings 282,516,493     173,111,916     109,404,577      
Plant and machinery 2,682,271,287  1,437,351,677  1,244,919,610   

2,984,901,488  1,610,463,593  1,374,437,895   

Accumulated Net
Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 20,113,708       -                   20,113,708        
Buildings 282,516,493     167,353,780     115,162,713      
Plant and machinery 2,682,271,287  1,371,829,592  1,310,441,695   

2,984,901,488  1,539,183,372  1,445,718,116   

21.6 As per most recent valuation, forced sale values of freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery are as follows:

Rupees

Freehold land 552,351,250      
Buildings 309,390,489      
Plant and machinery 1,645,175,000   

2,506,916,739   

21.7

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Freehold land -                   27,522,000        
Buildings -                   28,731,311        
Plant and machinery -                   247,334,895      

-                   303,588,205      

Most recent valuation of land, buildings and plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer Messrs Diamond
Surveyors Pakistan as at 30 June 2021. For basis of valuation and other fair value measurement disclosures, refer to note 47.

Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value of revalued items would have been as 

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-23

Operating fixed assets include certain assets leased out under operating lease arrangements to a related party. The net book
values of these assets as at reporting date are as follows:

The portion of land and buildingleased out has not been classified as investment property' under IAS 40 - InvestmentProperty,
as the portion leased out cannot be sold separately and the remaining portion held for manufacturing and administrative
purposes is not insignificant in relation to total area/value of land and buildings owned by the Company.
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23 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

The investment has been accounted for by using equity method. Particulars of investment are as follows:

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Percentage of ownership interest 46.90% 46.90%

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Cost of investment
18,450,000 (30-Jun-21: 18,450,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 184,500,000     184,500,000      
Bonus Issue @ 20% 36,900,920       36,900,920        
Share of post acquisition losses - unrealized (221,400,920)   (221,400,920)     

-                   -                     

23.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

24 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Utility companies and regulatory authorities 24.1 44,694,253       43,794,253        
Financial institutions 5,814,840         5,814,840          

50,509,093       49,609,093        

24.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

25 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material -                   -                     
Packing material -                   -                     
Work in process -                   -                     
Finished goods 25.1 & 25.2 -                   -                     

-                   -                     

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

26 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Gross amount due 245,700            -                     
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses 26.1 -                   -                     

245,700            -                     

These have been deposited with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These are classified as 'financial assets at 
amortized cost' under IFRS9 which are required to be carried at amortized cost. However, these, being held for an indefinite
period with no fixed maturity date, are carried at cost.

This represents investment in ordinary shares of Hira Terry MillsLimited ['HTML']an associate. HTMLis incorporated in Pakistan
as a Public LimitedCompany under the repealed CompaniesOrdinance, 1984. The registered office of the Company is situated
at 44-E/1, Gulberg III,Lahore. The principal activity of the Companyis manufacturing and sale of towels. The project is located at
Manga Raiwind Road, Tehsil and District Kasur in the Province of Punjab.

The Company's share of losses of associate has exceeded its interest in the associate. Accordingly, recognition of share of
further losses has been discontinued.
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23 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

The investment has been accounted for by using equity method. Particulars of investment are as follows:

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Percentage of ownership interest 46.90% 46.90%

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Cost of investment
18,450,000 (30-Jun-21: 18,450,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 184,500,000     184,500,000      
Bonus Issue @ 20% 36,900,920       36,900,920        
Share of post acquisition losses - unrealized (221,400,920)   (221,400,920)     

-                   -                     

23.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

24 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Utility companies and regulatory authorities 24.1 44,694,253       43,794,253        
Financial institutions 5,814,840         5,814,840          

50,509,093       49,609,093        

24.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

25 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material -                   -                     
Packing material -                   -                     
Work in process -                   -                     
Finished goods 25.1 & 25.2 -                   -                     

-                   -                     

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

26 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Gross amount due 245,700            -                     
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses 26.1 -                   -                     

245,700            -                     

These have been deposited with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These are classified as 'financial assets at 
amortized cost' under IFRS9 which are required to be carried at amortized cost. However, these, being held for an indefinite
period with no fixed maturity date, are carried at cost.

This represents investment in ordinary shares of Hira Terry MillsLimited ['HTML']an associate. HTMLis incorporated in Pakistan
as a Public LimitedCompany under the repealed CompaniesOrdinance, 1984. The registered office of the Company is situated
at 44-E/1, Gulberg III,Lahore. The principal activity of the Companyis manufacturing and sale of towels. The project is located at
Manga Raiwind Road, Tehsil and District Kasur in the Province of Punjab.

The Company's share of losses of associate has exceeded its interest in the associate. Accordingly, recognition of share of
further losses has been discontinued.
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

26.1 Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

As at beginning of the year                       -              1,644,111 
Recognized during the year 45.1.6                       -                          -   
Reversed during the year 45.1.6                       -            (1,644,111)

As at end of the year                       -                          -   

27 ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers 255,000            -                     
Sales tax refundable 35,695,110       35,695,110        
Excise duty refundable 1,953,431         1,953,431          
Interest Recievable 27.1 -                   18,996,716        
Sales Tax on Purchase 4,626,839         9,239,176          

-                   -                     

42,530,380       65,884,433        

27.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

28 ADVANCE INCOME TAX/INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE

Advance income tax/income tax refundable 24,178,983       23,124,244        
Provision for taxation 37 (910,205)          (527,500)            

23,268,778       22,596,744        

29 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 17,948              887,514             
Cash at banks

- Current accounts - local Currency 44,204              5,015,479          

62,152              5,902,993          

30 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Sales 84,077,217       49,374,000        
Sales tax (11,260,848)     (7,174,000)         

72,816,369       42,200,000        

The represents interest rebate receivable against reimbursement on account of 5% interest subsidy through notification by
Ministry of Commerce and Textile duly received during the year.

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

31 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 31.1 68,700,825       -                     
Packing material consumed 2,406,168         -                     
Stores and spares consumed 4,218,393         3,976,845          
Salaries, wages and benefits 31.2 11,418,754       25,074,798        
Power and fuel 28,482,895       36,347,113        
Depreciation 21.4 & 22.1 123,482,612     131,142,660      
Others 1,894,158         534,600             

Manufacturing cost 240,603,805     197,076,016      

Work in process
As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
As at end of the year -                   -                     

-                   -                     

Cost of goods manufactured 240,603,805     197,076,016      

Finished goods
As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
As at end of the year -                   -                     

-                   -                     
Cost of raw material sold -                   -                     

240,603,805     197,076,016      

31.1 Raw material consumed

As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
Purchased during the year 68,700,825       -                     
Sold during the year -                   -                     
As at end of the year -                   -                     

68,700,825       -                     

31.2

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

32 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Commission -                   -                     
Others -                   -                     

-                   -                     

These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits and contribuion to provident fund amounting to Rs. NILand
Rs. NIL   (30-Jun-23: Rs. NIL million and Rs. NIL million) respectively.
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

26.1 Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

As at beginning of the year                       -              1,644,111 
Recognized during the year 45.1.6                       -                          -   
Reversed during the year 45.1.6                       -            (1,644,111)

As at end of the year                       -                          -   

27 ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers 255,000            -                     
Sales tax refundable 35,695,110       35,695,110        
Excise duty refundable 1,953,431         1,953,431          
Interest Recievable 27.1 -                   18,996,716        
Sales Tax on Purchase 4,626,839         9,239,176          

-                   -                     

42,530,380       65,884,433        

27.1

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

28 ADVANCE INCOME TAX/INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE

Advance income tax/income tax refundable 24,178,983       23,124,244        
Provision for taxation 37 (910,205)          (527,500)            

23,268,778       22,596,744        

29 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 17,948              887,514             
Cash at banks

- Current accounts - local Currency 44,204              5,015,479          

62,152              5,902,993          

30 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Sales 84,077,217       49,374,000        
Sales tax (11,260,848)     (7,174,000)         

72,816,369       42,200,000        

The represents interest rebate receivable against reimbursement on account of 5% interest subsidy through notification by
Ministry of Commerce and Textile duly received during the year.

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

31 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 31.1 68,700,825       -                     
Packing material consumed 2,406,168         -                     
Stores and spares consumed 4,218,393         3,976,845          
Salaries, wages and benefits 31.2 11,418,754       25,074,798        
Power and fuel 28,482,895       36,347,113        
Depreciation 21.4 & 22.1 123,482,612     131,142,660      
Others 1,894,158         534,600             

Manufacturing cost 240,603,805     197,076,016      

Work in process
As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
As at end of the year -                   -                     

-                   -                     

Cost of goods manufactured 240,603,805     197,076,016      

Finished goods
As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
As at end of the year -                   -                     

-                   -                     
Cost of raw material sold -                   -                     

240,603,805     197,076,016      

31.1 Raw material consumed

As at beginning of the year -                   -                     
Purchased during the year 68,700,825       -                     
Sold during the year -                   -                     
As at end of the year -                   -                     

68,700,825       -                     

31.2

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

32 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Commission -                   -                     
Others -                   -                     

-                   -                     

These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits and contribuion to provident fund amounting to Rs. NILand
Rs. NIL   (30-Jun-23: Rs. NIL million and Rs. NIL million) respectively.
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 Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

33 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 33.1 12,390,026       4,663,485          
Rent, rates and taxes 3,000,000         -                     
Printing and stationery 45,507              11,000               
Communication 525,111            200,191             
Electricity, water and gas 537,441            98,254               
Repair and maintenance 66,560              1,200                 
Vehicles running and maintenance 593,488            239,291             
Traveling and conveyance 485,928            249,966             
Legal and professional 150,000            804,022             
Auditor's remuneration 33.2 700,000            500,000             
Fee and subscription 579,728            734,510             
Entertainment 18,060              7,320                 
Depreciation 21.4 & 22.1 2,520,052         2,676,380          
Others 573,183            223,327             

22,185,084       10,408,946        

33.1 These include charge in respect of contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. NIL (30-Jun-23: Rs. NIL million).

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

33.2 Auditor's remuneration

Annual statutory audit 200,000            200,000             
Limited scope review 100,000            100,000             
Review report on corporate governance 100,000            100,000             
Out of pocket expenses 100,000            100,000             

500,000            500,000             

34 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund 16.4 -                   -                     
Donations -                   -                     

-                   -                     

35 OTHER INCOME

Rental income 35.1 -                   63,287,932        
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 876,973            828,942             

876,973            64,116,874        

35.1

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

36 FINANCE COST

Interest on borrowings:
long term finances 94,516,270       94,516,270        
short term borrowings 20,820,120       20,820,120        

115,336,390     115,336,390      
Bank charges and commission 5,166                2,395,782          

115,341,556     117,732,172      

This represents rental income against assets leased out to a related party. (See note 21.7).

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

37 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current taxation
for current year 37.1 910,205            527,500             
for prior year -                   -                     

910,205            527,500             
Deferred taxation 15 (27,572,677)     12,035,698        

(26,662,472)     12,563,198        

37.1

37.2

Unit 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

38 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees (281,259,884)   (366,245,080)     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year No. of shares 86,577,920       86,577,920        

Loss per share Rupees (3.25)                (4.23)                  

There is no anti-diluting effect on the basic loss per share of the Company.
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation (307,922,356)   (353,681,882)     
Adjustments for non-cash and other items

Interest on borrowings 115,336,390     115,336,390      
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (876,973)          (828,942)            
Provision for employees retirement benefits -                   -                     
Depreciation 126,002,666     133,819,040      
Notional interest 3,485,253         134,781,622      

 Impairment allowance for expected credit losses -                   -                     

243,947,336     383,108,110      

(63,975,020)     29,426,228        
Changes in working capital

Long term deposits (900,000)          -                     
Stores and spares 202,011            3,976,845          
Stock in trade -                   1,484,013          
Trade receivables (245,700)          -                     
Advances and other receivables 23,354,053       14,578,671        
Trade and other payables 36,289,054       (44,368,582)       

58,699,418       (24,329,053)       

Cash generated from operations (5,275,602)       5,097,175          

40 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 62,152              5,902,993          

62,152              5,902,993          

Provision for current tax has been made in accordance with section 113 (30-Jun-23: section 113) of the Income Tax Ordinance
2001 ['the Ordinance']. There is no relationship between the aggregate tax expense and accounting profit and accordingly, no
numerical reconciliation has been presented.

The income tax assessments of the Companyup to and including tax year 2023 have been completed by the concerned income
tax authorities or are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Ordinance.
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 Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees
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Salaries and benefits 33.1 12,390,026       4,663,485          
Rent, rates and taxes 3,000,000         -                     
Printing and stationery 45,507              11,000               
Communication 525,111            200,191             
Electricity, water and gas 537,441            98,254               
Repair and maintenance 66,560              1,200                 
Vehicles running and maintenance 593,488            239,291             
Traveling and conveyance 485,928            249,966             
Legal and professional 150,000            804,022             
Auditor's remuneration 33.2 700,000            500,000             
Fee and subscription 579,728            734,510             
Entertainment 18,060              7,320                 
Depreciation 21.4 & 22.1 2,520,052         2,676,380          
Others 573,183            223,327             

22,185,084       10,408,946        

33.1 These include charge in respect of contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. NIL (30-Jun-23: Rs. NIL million).

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

33.2 Auditor's remuneration

Annual statutory audit 200,000            200,000             
Limited scope review 100,000            100,000             
Review report on corporate governance 100,000            100,000             
Out of pocket expenses 100,000            100,000             

500,000            500,000             

34 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund 16.4 -                   -                     
Donations -                   -                     

-                   -                     

35 OTHER INCOME

Rental income 35.1 -                   63,287,932        
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 876,973            828,942             

876,973            64,116,874        

35.1

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

36 FINANCE COST

Interest on borrowings:
long term finances 94,516,270       94,516,270        
short term borrowings 20,820,120       20,820,120        

115,336,390     115,336,390      
Bank charges and commission 5,166                2,395,782          

115,341,556     117,732,172      

This represents rental income against assets leased out to a related party. (See note 21.7).

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

37 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current taxation
for current year 37.1 910,205            527,500             
for prior year -                   -                     

910,205            527,500             
Deferred taxation 15 (27,572,677)     12,035,698        

(26,662,472)     12,563,198        

37.1

37.2

Unit 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

38 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees (281,259,884)   (366,245,080)     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year No. of shares 86,577,920       86,577,920        

Loss per share Rupees (3.25)                (4.23)                  

There is no anti-diluting effect on the basic loss per share of the Company.
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation (307,922,356)   (353,681,882)     
Adjustments for non-cash and other items

Interest on borrowings 115,336,390     115,336,390      
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (876,973)          (828,942)            
Provision for employees retirement benefits -                   -                     
Depreciation 126,002,666     133,819,040      
Notional interest 3,485,253         134,781,622      

 Impairment allowance for expected credit losses -                   -                     

243,947,336     383,108,110      

(63,975,020)     29,426,228        
Changes in working capital

Long term deposits (900,000)          -                     
Stores and spares 202,011            3,976,845          
Stock in trade -                   1,484,013          
Trade receivables (245,700)          -                     
Advances and other receivables 23,354,053       14,578,671        
Trade and other payables 36,289,054       (44,368,582)       

58,699,418       (24,329,053)       

Cash generated from operations (5,275,602)       5,097,175          

40 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 62,152              5,902,993          

62,152              5,902,993          

Provision for current tax has been made in accordance with section 113 (30-Jun-23: section 113) of the Income Tax Ordinance
2001 ['the Ordinance']. There is no relationship between the aggregate tax expense and accounting profit and accordingly, no
numerical reconciliation has been presented.

The income tax assessments of the Companyup to and including tax year 2023 have been completed by the concerned income
tax authorities or are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Ordinance.
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41 CHANGES FROM FINANCING CASH FLOWS

Long term Lease Long term Lease
finances  liabilities finances  liabilities
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 1,651,827,920  3,136,406         1,648,600,834  3,803,648          
Repayment of long term finances (0)                     -                   (0)                     -                     
Notional Interest (income)/expense 3,485,253         -                   3,227,086         -                     
Transferred from accrued interest -                   -                   -                   -                     
Transferred from short term borrowings -                   -                   -                   -                     
Payment of lease liabilities -                   -                   -                   (667,242)            
As at end of the year 1,655,313,173  3,136,406         1,651,827,920  3,136,406          

42 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Name of related party Nature of relationship Basis of relationship

Hira Terry Mills Limited Associated company Investment 0.0000%
Muhammad Umer Virk Sponsor Shareholding 27.3612%
Shahnaz Umer Sponsor Shareholding 6.6135%
Sadiya Umair Sponsor Shareholding 6.5120%
Umair Umer Close relative of Sponsor Son of Sponsor 2.2794%
Umaira Umer Close relative of Sponsor Daughter of Sponsor 9.9378%
Saeed Ahmad Khan Key management personnel Director 0.0000%

42.1 Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Associated company Sales -                   -                     
Payments received -                   150,659,370      
Expenses charged 28,908,765       5,934,729          
Adjustments 82,887,341       82,088,251        
Rental income -                   63,287,932        

Provident fund trust Contribution for the year -                   -                     

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Transactions with sponsors and their close relatives are limitedto provision of long term and temporary short term loans to the
Company. Transactions with key managementpersonnel are limitedto payment of short term employeebenefits. The Company
in the normal course of business carries out various transactions with associated companies and continues to have a policy
whereby all such transactions are carried out on commercial terms and conditions which are equivalent to those prevailing in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the date of transaction. Detail of transactions and balances with related 

Related parties from the Company's perspective comprise associated companies, sponsors and their close relatives and key
management personnel. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, and includes the Chief Executive and Directors of
the Company. The details of Company's related parties, with whom the Company had transactions during the year or has
balances outstanding as at the reporting date are as follows:

 Aggregate 
%age of 

shareholding 

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

42.2 Balances with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of balance

Associated company Advance against rent 90,265,590       36,278,887        
Trade receivables/ payable -                   -                     

Sponsors Borrowings 481,500,000     481,500,000      
Current account 45,752,780       47,258,987        

Key management personnel Short term employee benefits payable -                   -                     

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

43 CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

43.1 Contract balances

The information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers is as follows:

Nature of balance Presented in financial statements as Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Receivables Trade receivables 26 245,700            -                     
Contract liabilities Advances from customers 16 15,912,024       15,912,024        

16,157,724       15,912,024        

43.2 Changes in contract liabilities

Significant changes in contract liabilities are as follows:

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 15,912,024       15,912,024        
Revenue recognized against contract liability as at beginning of the year (15,912,024)     (15,912,024)       
Net increase due to cash received in excess of revenue recognized 15,912,024       15,912,024        

As at end of the year 16 15,912,024       15,912,024        

43.3 Impairment losses

44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments by class and category are as follows:

The Companyduring the year has recognized Rs. NIL (30-Jun-23: Rs. NIL)as impairmentallowance for expected credit losses
on receivables (trade receivables) arising from the Company's contracts with customers. See note 26.1.
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Hira Terry Mills Limited Associated company Investment 0.0000%
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Nature of relationship Nature of transactions
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Payments received -                   150,659,370      
Expenses charged 28,908,765       5,934,729          
Adjustments 82,887,341       82,088,251        
Rental income -                   63,287,932        

Provident fund trust Contribution for the year -                   -                     

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Transactions with sponsors and their close relatives are limitedto provision of long term and temporary short term loans to the
Company. Transactions with key managementpersonnel are limitedto payment of short term employeebenefits. The Company
in the normal course of business carries out various transactions with associated companies and continues to have a policy
whereby all such transactions are carried out on commercial terms and conditions which are equivalent to those prevailing in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the date of transaction. Detail of transactions and balances with related 

Related parties from the Company's perspective comprise associated companies, sponsors and their close relatives and key
management personnel. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, and includes the Chief Executive and Directors of
the Company. The details of Company's related parties, with whom the Company had transactions during the year or has
balances outstanding as at the reporting date are as follows:

 Aggregate 
%age of 

shareholding 

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

42.2 Balances with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of balance

Associated company Advance against rent 90,265,590       36,278,887        
Trade receivables/ payable -                   -                     

Sponsors Borrowings 481,500,000     481,500,000      
Current account 45,752,780       47,258,987        

Key management personnel Short term employee benefits payable -                   -                     

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

43 CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

43.1 Contract balances

The information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers is as follows:

Nature of balance Presented in financial statements as Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Receivables Trade receivables 26 245,700            -                     
Contract liabilities Advances from customers 16 15,912,024       15,912,024        

16,157,724       15,912,024        

43.2 Changes in contract liabilities

Significant changes in contract liabilities are as follows:

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 15,912,024       15,912,024        
Revenue recognized against contract liability as at beginning of the year (15,912,024)     (15,912,024)       
Net increase due to cash received in excess of revenue recognized 15,912,024       15,912,024        
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

44.1 Financial assets

Cash in hand 29 17,948              887,514             

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 24 50,509,093       49,609,093        
Trade receivables 26 245,700            -                     
Advances to employees 27 -                   -                     
Bank balances 29 44,204              5,015,479          

50,816,945       55,512,086        

44.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Long term finances 11 1,655,313,173  1,651,827,920   
Lease liabilities 12 3,136,406         3,136,406          
Short term borrowings 17 334,970,742     334,970,742      
Accrued interest 18 739,931,590     624,595,200      
Trade creditors 16 180,048,887     180,765,534      
Accrued liabilities 16 36,171,185       51,645,980        
Other payables 16 45,752,780       47,258,987        
Unclaimed dividend 2,757,216         2,757,216          

2,998,081,978  2,896,957,984   

45 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

45.1 Credit risk

45.1.1 Credit risk management practices

The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast
transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

The Company’sactivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses and assets and liabilities of the Company.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishmentand oversight of risk managementframework. The Board
of Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk managementframework. The risk policy focuses on
unpredictability of financial markets, the Company’s exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managingsuch risks. The managementteam of the Companyis responsible for administeringand
monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management throughout the Company in accordance with the risk
management framework.

In order to minimizecredit risk, the Companyhas adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthy counterparties and limiting
significant exposure to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with counterparties that have reasonably high
external credit ratings. Where an external rating is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism.
Particularly for customers, a dedicated team responsible for the determinationof credit limits uses a credit scoring system to
assess the potential as well as existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates credit limitsaccordingly. The ageing
profile of trade receivables and individuallysignificant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on a regular basis.
High risk customers are identified and restrictions are placed on future trading.

The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individualbasis at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate loss allowance is made in accordance with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset.

The Companyconsiders a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit rating or if
an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performingmeans that the counterparty has
no past due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normalcourse
of business based on history with the counterparty.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations.

The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category Description Basis for recognizing ECL

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Trade receivables: Lifetime ECL
Other assets: 12-month ECL

Doubtful Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognitionLifetime ECL

In default There is evidence indicating the assets is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL

Write-off There is no realistic prospect of recovery Amount is written-off

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial
condition and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at 
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that 
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward?looking information that is available without undue cost 
or effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has 
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company 
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. This is usually the case with various customers of the 
Company where the Company has long standing business relationship with these customers and any amounts that are past due by 
more than 30 days in the normal course of business are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. Therefore 
despite the foregoing, the Company considers some past due trade receivables to have low credit risk where the debtor has a good 
history of meeting its contractual cash flow obligations and is expected to maintain the same in future.

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is considered to be 
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset 
have occurred.

45.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 24        50,509,093          49,609,093 
Trade receivables 26             245,700                        -   
Advances to employees 27                       -                          -   
Bank balances 29               44,204            5,015,479 

       50,798,997          54,624,572 

45.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

Credit risk principally arises from debt instruments held by the Company as at the reporting date. The maximumexposure to
credit risk as at the reporting date is as follows:

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to internal credit risk
grading. The credit quality of the Company’s financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows:
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Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees
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2,998,081,978  2,896,957,984   
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45.1 Credit risk

45.1.1 Credit risk management practices

The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast
transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

The Company’sactivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses and assets and liabilities of the Company.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishmentand oversight of risk managementframework. The Board
of Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk managementframework. The risk policy focuses on
unpredictability of financial markets, the Company’s exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managingsuch risks. The managementteam of the Companyis responsible for administeringand
monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management throughout the Company in accordance with the risk
management framework.

In order to minimizecredit risk, the Companyhas adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthy counterparties and limiting
significant exposure to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with counterparties that have reasonably high
external credit ratings. Where an external rating is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism.
Particularly for customers, a dedicated team responsible for the determinationof credit limits uses a credit scoring system to
assess the potential as well as existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates credit limitsaccordingly. The ageing
profile of trade receivables and individuallysignificant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on a regular basis.
High risk customers are identified and restrictions are placed on future trading.

The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individualbasis at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate loss allowance is made in accordance with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset.

The Companyconsiders a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit rating or if
an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performingmeans that the counterparty has
no past due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normalcourse
of business based on history with the counterparty.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations.

The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category Description Basis for recognizing ECL

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Trade receivables: Lifetime ECL
Other assets: 12-month ECL

Doubtful Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognitionLifetime ECL

In default There is evidence indicating the assets is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL

Write-off There is no realistic prospect of recovery Amount is written-off

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial
condition and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at 
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that 
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward?looking information that is available without undue cost 
or effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has 
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company 
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. This is usually the case with various customers of the 
Company where the Company has long standing business relationship with these customers and any amounts that are past due by 
more than 30 days in the normal course of business are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. Therefore 
despite the foregoing, the Company considers some past due trade receivables to have low credit risk where the debtor has a good 
history of meeting its contractual cash flow obligations and is expected to maintain the same in future.

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is considered to be 
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset 
have occurred.

45.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 24        50,509,093          49,609,093 
Trade receivables 26             245,700                        -   
Advances to employees 27                       -                          -   
Bank balances 29               44,204            5,015,479 

       50,798,997          54,624,572 

45.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

Credit risk principally arises from debt instruments held by the Company as at the reporting date. The maximumexposure to
credit risk as at the reporting date is as follows:

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to internal credit risk
grading. The credit quality of the Company’s financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows:
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External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Loss
Note rating risk grading life-time ECL amount allowance

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits # N/A Performing 12-month ECL        50,509,093                        -   

Trade receivables # N/A Performing Lifetime ECL             245,700                        -   
# N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL                       -                          -   

            245,700                        -   

Advances to employees # N/A Performing 12-month ECL                       -                          -   

Bank balances # A2 - A1+ N/A 12-month ECL               44,204                        -   

       50,798,997                        -   

(a) Long term deposits

(b) Trade receivables

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

 
Neither past due nor impaired -                   -                     
Past due by up to 30 days -                   -                     
Past due by 31 days to 180 days -                   -                     
Past due by 181 days or more -                   -                     

-                   -                     

(c) Advances to employees

Long term deposits comprise security deposits placed with various financial institutions and utility companies. These
deposits are placed for an indefinite period without any fixed maturity and will be due for refund only if the Companyceases
to use the underlying services. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no 
loss allowance has been made.

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplifiedapproach in IFRS9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using internal credit risk gradings. As at
the reporting date, all trade receivables are considered 'performing' as there is no significant increase in credit risk in
respect of these receivables since initialrecognition except for trade receivables amountingto Rs. NIL(2023: Rs. NIL)which
are considered doubtful. The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date is as follows: 

Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit risk
has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made.

(d) Bank balances

45.1.4 Concentration of credit risk

The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various independent credit rating
agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial
standing, managementdoes not expect any credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial
assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, except for trade receivables. The Company's two (30-Jun-23: NIL)
significant customers account for Rs.0.246 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. NILmillion)of trade receivables as at the reporting date, apart
from which, exposure to any single customer does not exceed 10% (30-Jun-23: 10%) of trade receivables as at the reporting
date. These significant customers have long standing business relationships with the Company and have a good payment
record and accordingly non-performance by these customers is not expected.

45.1.5 Collateral held

45.1.6 Changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year                       -              1,644,111 
Impairment loss on trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

- recognized during the year 26.1                       -                          -   
- reversed during the year 26.1                       -            (1,644,111)

Net change in impairment allowance                       -            (1,644,111)

As at end of the year                       -                          -   

45.2 Liquidity risk

45.2.1 Liquidity risk management

45.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk

The following presents the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The analysis have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the 
earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay and includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the reporting date.

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets with the exception advances to employees which are
secured against future salaries and post-employment benefits.

The changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses are as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company'sapproach to managingliquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company's reputation. The Company monitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow projections for
the short and long term. Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
cash flows, including servicing of financial obligations. This includes maintenanceof balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and
creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. The
Company also maintains various lines of credit with banking companies. Further, the Company has continued support of its
sponsors and in respect of any temporary liquidity shortfalls.
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External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Loss
Note rating risk grading life-time ECL amount allowance

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits # N/A Performing 12-month ECL        50,509,093                        -   

Trade receivables # N/A Performing Lifetime ECL             245,700                        -   
# N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL                       -                          -   

            245,700                        -   

Advances to employees # N/A Performing 12-month ECL                       -                          -   

Bank balances # A2 - A1+ N/A 12-month ECL               44,204                        -   

       50,798,997                        -   

(a) Long term deposits

(b) Trade receivables

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

 
Neither past due nor impaired -                   -                     
Past due by up to 30 days -                   -                     
Past due by 31 days to 180 days -                   -                     
Past due by 181 days or more -                   -                     

-                   -                     

(c) Advances to employees

Long term deposits comprise security deposits placed with various financial institutions and utility companies. These
deposits are placed for an indefinite period without any fixed maturity and will be due for refund only if the Companyceases
to use the underlying services. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no 
loss allowance has been made.

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplifiedapproach in IFRS9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using internal credit risk gradings. As at
the reporting date, all trade receivables are considered 'performing' as there is no significant increase in credit risk in
respect of these receivables since initialrecognition except for trade receivables amountingto Rs. NIL(2023: Rs. NIL)which
are considered doubtful. The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date is as follows: 

Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit risk
has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made.

(d) Bank balances

45.1.4 Concentration of credit risk

The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various independent credit rating
agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial
standing, managementdoes not expect any credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial
assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, except for trade receivables. The Company's two (30-Jun-23: NIL)
significant customers account for Rs.0.246 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. NILmillion)of trade receivables as at the reporting date, apart
from which, exposure to any single customer does not exceed 10% (30-Jun-23: 10%) of trade receivables as at the reporting
date. These significant customers have long standing business relationships with the Company and have a good payment
record and accordingly non-performance by these customers is not expected.

45.1.5 Collateral held

45.1.6 Changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses

Note 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year                       -              1,644,111 
Impairment loss on trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

- recognized during the year 26.1                       -                          -   
- reversed during the year 26.1                       -            (1,644,111)

Net change in impairment allowance                       -            (1,644,111)

As at end of the year                       -                          -   

45.2 Liquidity risk

45.2.1 Liquidity risk management

45.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk

The following presents the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The analysis have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the 
earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay and includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the reporting date.

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets with the exception advances to employees which are
secured against future salaries and post-employment benefits.

The changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses are as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company'sapproach to managingliquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company's reputation. The Company monitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow projections for
the short and long term. Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
cash flows, including servicing of financial obligations. This includes maintenanceof balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and
creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. The
Company also maintains various lines of credit with banking companies. Further, the Company has continued support of its
sponsors and in respect of any temporary liquidity shortfalls.
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Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cash flows or less three years three years
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 1,655,313,173 2,194,226,055  640,405,665     631,710,834     922,109,556      
Lease liabilities 3,136,406        3,136,406         3,136,406         -                   -                     
Deferred interest -                   306,806,479     -                   34,902,181       271,904,298      
Short term borrowings 334,970,742    334,970,742     334,970,742     -                   -                     
Accrued interest 739,931,590    739,931,590     739,931,590     -                   -                     
Trade creditors 180,048,887    180,048,887     180,048,887     -                   -                     
Accrued liabilities 36,171,185      36,171,185       36,171,185       -                   -                     
Other payables 45,752,780      45,752,780       45,752,780       -                   -                     
Unclaimed dividend 2,757,216        2,757,216         2,757,216         -                   -                     

2,998,081,978 3,843,801,340  1,983,174,471  666,613,015     1,194,013,854   

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cash flows or less three years three years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 1,651,827,920 2,194,226,055  640,405,665     631,710,834     922,109,556      
Lease liabilities 3,136,406        3,136,406         3,136,406         -                   -                     
Deferred interest -                   306,806,479     -                   34,902,181       271,904,298      
Short term borrowings 334,970,742    334,970,742     334,970,742     -                   -                     
Accrued interest 624,595,200    624,595,200     624,595,200     -                   -                     
Trade creditors 180,765,534    180,765,534     180,765,534     -                   -                     
Accrued liabilities 51,645,980      51,645,980       51,645,980       -                   -                     
Other payables 47,258,987      47,258,987       47,258,987       -                   -                     
Unclaimed dividend 2,757,216        2,757,216         2,757,216         -                   -                     

2,896,957,984 3,746,162,598  1,885,535,729  666,613,015     1,194,013,854   

45.2.3 Overdue financial liabilities

Principal Interest Total
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 1,655,313,173  562,566,252     2,217,879,425   
Short term borrowings 334,970,742     177,365,338     512,336,080      

  1,990,283,914      739,931,590     2,730,215,504 

45.3 Market risk

45.3.1 Currency risk

45.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates.

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-23

The Company is facing a temporary liquidity shortfall as a result of which it was unable to meet its obligations in respect of
various debt finances. The details are as follows:

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises from transactions and resulting balances that are denominatedin a currency other
than functional currency. The Company is not exposed to currency risk

(a) Interest rate risk management

(b) Interest bearing financial instruments

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets -                   -                     
Financial liabilities 6,385,000         6,385,000          

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets -                   -                     
Financial liabilities 1,668,013,159  1,668,013,159   

(c) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

(d) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

45.3.3 Other Price risk

46 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Unit 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Total debt Rupees 1,674,398,159  1,659,730,620   
Total equity Rupees (577,416,621)   (296,156,737)     

Total capital employed 1,096,981,537  1,363,573,883   

Gearing % age 152.64              121.72               

The Companymanages interest rate risk by analyzing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate
risk is managed by simulating various scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and
alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of defined 
interest rate shift, mostly 100 basis points.

The effective interest rates for interest bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial
statements. The Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

The Company does not account for its fixed rate instruments at fair value

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital managementduring the year. The Companyis not subject to any
other externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly imposedby
the providers of debt finance and subordination of loan from sponsors (see note 10).

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased profit for the year by Rs.
16.6801 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. 16.687 million).A decrease of 100 basis points would have had an equal but opposite effect
on profit for the year. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remainconstant
and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for taxation for the year.

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in marketprices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments. The
Company is not exposed to price risk since the fair values of the Company's financial instruments are not based on market 

The Company's policy is to maintaina strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. Any temporary shortfall is met through interest free loans from sponsors. The
Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and seeks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible
with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Companymonitors
capital using the gearing ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances and lease
liabilities including current maturity. Total capital employed includes total equity, as shown in the statement of financial position,
plus debt. The Company'sstrategy is to maintainan optimal capital structure in order to minimizecost of capital. Gearing ratio of
the Company as at the reporting date is as follows:
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Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cash flows or less three years three years
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 1,655,313,173 2,194,226,055  640,405,665     631,710,834     922,109,556      
Lease liabilities 3,136,406        3,136,406         3,136,406         -                   -                     
Deferred interest -                   306,806,479     -                   34,902,181       271,904,298      
Short term borrowings 334,970,742    334,970,742     334,970,742     -                   -                     
Accrued interest 739,931,590    739,931,590     739,931,590     -                   -                     
Trade creditors 180,048,887    180,048,887     180,048,887     -                   -                     
Accrued liabilities 36,171,185      36,171,185       36,171,185       -                   -                     
Other payables 45,752,780      45,752,780       45,752,780       -                   -                     
Unclaimed dividend 2,757,216        2,757,216         2,757,216         -                   -                     

2,998,081,978 3,843,801,340  1,983,174,471  666,613,015     1,194,013,854   

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cash flows or less three years three years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 1,651,827,920 2,194,226,055  640,405,665     631,710,834     922,109,556      
Lease liabilities 3,136,406        3,136,406         3,136,406         -                   -                     
Deferred interest -                   306,806,479     -                   34,902,181       271,904,298      
Short term borrowings 334,970,742    334,970,742     334,970,742     -                   -                     
Accrued interest 624,595,200    624,595,200     624,595,200     -                   -                     
Trade creditors 180,765,534    180,765,534     180,765,534     -                   -                     
Accrued liabilities 51,645,980      51,645,980       51,645,980       -                   -                     
Other payables 47,258,987      47,258,987       47,258,987       -                   -                     
Unclaimed dividend 2,757,216        2,757,216         2,757,216         -                   -                     

2,896,957,984 3,746,162,598  1,885,535,729  666,613,015     1,194,013,854   

45.2.3 Overdue financial liabilities

Principal Interest Total
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 1,655,313,173  562,566,252     2,217,879,425   
Short term borrowings 334,970,742     177,365,338     512,336,080      

  1,990,283,914      739,931,590     2,730,215,504 

45.3 Market risk

45.3.1 Currency risk

45.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates.

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-23

The Company is facing a temporary liquidity shortfall as a result of which it was unable to meet its obligations in respect of
various debt finances. The details are as follows:

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises from transactions and resulting balances that are denominatedin a currency other
than functional currency. The Company is not exposed to currency risk

(a) Interest rate risk management

(b) Interest bearing financial instruments

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets -                   -                     
Financial liabilities 6,385,000         6,385,000          

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets -                   -                     
Financial liabilities 1,668,013,159  1,668,013,159   

(c) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

(d) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

45.3.3 Other Price risk

46 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Unit 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Total debt Rupees 1,674,398,159  1,659,730,620   
Total equity Rupees (577,416,621)   (296,156,737)     

Total capital employed 1,096,981,537  1,363,573,883   

Gearing % age 152.64              121.72               

The Companymanages interest rate risk by analyzing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate
risk is managed by simulating various scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and
alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of defined 
interest rate shift, mostly 100 basis points.

The effective interest rates for interest bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial
statements. The Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

The Company does not account for its fixed rate instruments at fair value

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital managementduring the year. The Companyis not subject to any
other externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly imposedby
the providers of debt finance and subordination of loan from sponsors (see note 10).

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased profit for the year by Rs.
16.6801 million(30-Jun-23: Rs. 16.687 million).A decrease of 100 basis points would have had an equal but opposite effect
on profit for the year. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remainconstant
and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for taxation for the year.

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in marketprices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments. The
Company is not exposed to price risk since the fair values of the Company's financial instruments are not based on market 

The Company's policy is to maintaina strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. Any temporary shortfall is met through interest free loans from sponsors. The
Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and seeks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible
with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Companymonitors
capital using the gearing ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances and lease
liabilities including current maturity. Total capital employed includes total equity, as shown in the statement of financial position,
plus debt. The Company'sstrategy is to maintainan optimal capital structure in order to minimizecost of capital. Gearing ratio of
the Company as at the reporting date is as follows:
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47 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

47.1

47.1.1 Recurring fair value measurements

There are no recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.
47.1.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

47.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

47.3 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments

47.3.1 Recurring fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Freehold land                       -   649,825,000                           -   649,825,000     649,825,000      
Buildings                       -        312,224,521                       -   312,224,521     328,657,391      
Plant and machinery                       -     1,681,305,049                       -   1,681,305,049  1,769,794,789   

For fair value measurements categorized into Level 2 the following information is relevant:

Freehold land

Buildings

Plant and
machinery

Estimated purchase price,
including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes and
other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition or construction,
erection and installation.

A 5% increase in estimated
purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes and other directly
attributable costs would results in
an increase in fair value of plant
and machinery by Rs.88.490 million
(30-Jun-23: Rs. 93.147 million).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized in Level 2 is presented in note 47.3.1.

There were no transfers between fair value hierarchies during the year.

Cost approach that reflects the cost 
to the market participants to acquire 
assets of comparable utility and 
age, adjusted for obsolescence and 
depreciation. There was no change 
in valuation technique during the 
year.

Estimated construction costs and
other ancillary expenditure.

A 5% increase in estimated
construction and other ancillary
expenditure would result in an
increase in fair value of buildings by 
Rs. 16.433 million (30-Jun-23: Rs.
17.298 million).

Market comparable approach that 
reflects recent transaction prices 
for similar properties

Cost approach that reflects the cost 
to the market participants to 
construct assets of comparable 
utility and age, adjusted for 
obsolescence and depreciation. 
There was no change in valuation 

Significant inputs Sensitivity

Estimated purchase price,
including non-refundable purchase 
taxes and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

A 5% increase in estimated
purchase price, including non-
refundable purchase taxes and
other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition would result in a
significant increase in fair value of
buildings by Rs. 32.491 million(30-
Jun-23: Rs. 32.491 million).

The Companymeasures some of its assets at fair value. The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value
and the information about how the fair values of these financial instruments are determined are as follows:

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not measured at fair value to approximate their
carrying values.

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as 

Valuation technique

47.3.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

48 RESTRICTION ON TITLE, AND ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 

Mortgages and charges

Charge over current assets 3,007,000,000  3,007,000,000   
Charge over fixed assets 2,744,384,404  2,744,384,404   

49 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -                   -                   5,104,800          
House rent -                   -                   1,021,200          
Motor vehicle expenses -                   -                   544,111             
Utilities -                   -                   -                     
Post employment benefits -                   -                   -                     

-                   -                   6,670,111          

Number of persons 1                       1                       2                        

Chief Executive Directors Executives
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -                   -                   1,680,635          
House rent -                   -                   336,127             
Motor vehicle expenses -                   -                   239,291             
Utilities -                   -                   -                     
Post employment benefits -                   -                   -                     

0 -                   -                   2,256,053          

Number of persons 1                       1                       2                        

50 NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

51 SEGMENT INFORMATION

51.1 The Company is a single reportable segment.

51.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

51.3 All sales of the Company have originated from Pakistan. 

30-Jun-23

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

During the year, short term borrowings amountingto Rs.NILmillion(30-Jun-23: Rs. NILmillion)and accrued interest amountingto
Rs. NIL million (30-Jun-23: Rs. NIL) were converted into long term finances and accrued interest amounting to Rs. 422.695 million 
(30-Jun-23: Rs. 86.396 million) and Rs. NIL (30-Jun-23: Rs. 9.72 million) as referred to in note 11.8, 11.9, 11.10, 17.1 and 17.2.

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives on account of
managerial remuneration, allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and 

30-June-24

Annual Report 2024



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E DHira Tex�le Mills Limited78 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS

L I M I T E D 79

47 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

47.1

47.1.1 Recurring fair value measurements

There are no recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.
47.1.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

47.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

47.3 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments

47.3.1 Recurring fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

Freehold land                       -   649,825,000                           -   649,825,000     649,825,000      
Buildings                       -        312,224,521                       -   312,224,521     328,657,391      
Plant and machinery                       -     1,681,305,049                       -   1,681,305,049  1,769,794,789   

For fair value measurements categorized into Level 2 the following information is relevant:

Freehold land

Buildings

Plant and
machinery

Estimated purchase price,
including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes and
other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition or construction,
erection and installation.

A 5% increase in estimated
purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes and other directly
attributable costs would results in
an increase in fair value of plant
and machinery by Rs.88.490 million
(30-Jun-23: Rs. 93.147 million).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized in Level 2 is presented in note 47.3.1.

There were no transfers between fair value hierarchies during the year.

Cost approach that reflects the cost 
to the market participants to acquire 
assets of comparable utility and 
age, adjusted for obsolescence and 
depreciation. There was no change 
in valuation technique during the 
year.

Estimated construction costs and
other ancillary expenditure.

A 5% increase in estimated
construction and other ancillary
expenditure would result in an
increase in fair value of buildings by 
Rs. 16.433 million (30-Jun-23: Rs.
17.298 million).

Market comparable approach that 
reflects recent transaction prices 
for similar properties

Cost approach that reflects the cost 
to the market participants to 
construct assets of comparable 
utility and age, adjusted for 
obsolescence and depreciation. 
There was no change in valuation 

Significant inputs Sensitivity

Estimated purchase price,
including non-refundable purchase 
taxes and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

A 5% increase in estimated
purchase price, including non-
refundable purchase taxes and
other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition would result in a
significant increase in fair value of
buildings by Rs. 32.491 million(30-
Jun-23: Rs. 32.491 million).

The Companymeasures some of its assets at fair value. The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value
and the information about how the fair values of these financial instruments are determined are as follows:

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not measured at fair value to approximate their
carrying values.

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as 

Valuation technique

47.3.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

48 RESTRICTION ON TITLE, AND ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 

Mortgages and charges

Charge over current assets 3,007,000,000  3,007,000,000   
Charge over fixed assets 2,744,384,404  2,744,384,404   

49 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -                   -                   5,104,800          
House rent -                   -                   1,021,200          
Motor vehicle expenses -                   -                   544,111             
Utilities -                   -                   -                     
Post employment benefits -                   -                   -                     

-                   -                   6,670,111          

Number of persons 1                       1                       2                        

Chief Executive Directors Executives
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -                   -                   1,680,635          
House rent -                   -                   336,127             
Motor vehicle expenses -                   -                   239,291             
Utilities -                   -                   -                     
Post employment benefits -                   -                   -                     

0 -                   -                   2,256,053          

Number of persons 1                       1                       2                        

50 NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

51 SEGMENT INFORMATION

51.1 The Company is a single reportable segment.

51.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

51.3 All sales of the Company have originated from Pakistan. 

30-Jun-23

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

During the year, short term borrowings amountingto Rs.NILmillion(30-Jun-23: Rs. NILmillion)and accrued interest amountingto
Rs. NIL million (30-Jun-23: Rs. NIL) were converted into long term finances and accrued interest amounting to Rs. 422.695 million 
(30-Jun-23: Rs. 86.396 million) and Rs. NIL (30-Jun-23: Rs. 9.72 million) as referred to in note 11.8, 11.9, 11.10, 17.1 and 17.2.

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives on account of
managerial remuneration, allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and 

30-June-24
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Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve

52 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

53 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Unit 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Production capacity

Number of spindles installed No. 47,040              47,040               
Installed capacity after conversion into 20's count Kgs 15,493,933       15,493,933        

Actual production

Actual production after conversion into 20's count Kgs 162,418            254,016             

54 MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASE

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Rupees Rupees

- not later than one year -                   63,287,931        
- later than one year but not later than five years -                   27,209,779        

-                   90,497,710        

55 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

Total number of employees 30                     35                      

Average number of employees 30                     35                      

56 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

57 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT

58 GENERAL

There are no significant events after the reporting period which may require adjustment of and/or disclosure in these financial
statements, except for those already disclosed in these financial statements.

As at the reporting date, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are equal to or exceed their carrying amounts, 
unless stated otherwise in these financial statements.

Comparativefigures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, there
were no significant reclassifications during the year.

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending on various
factors such as count of yarn spun, spindles speed, twist per inch and raw materials used, etc. It also varies according to the
pattern of production adopted. Difference of actual production with installed capacity is in normal course of business.

The Company has leased out certain assets under operating lease arrangements to a related party, Hira Terry Mills Limited.
Amounts of minimum lease payments receivable under the lease agreement are as follows:

The Company operates a contributory provident fund for its employees where contributions are made by the Company and
employees each at 8.33% (30-Jun-23: 8.33%) of the basic salary every month. The investments out of the provident fund have
been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified 
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The Company Secretary
Hira Tex�le Mills Limited
8 KM, Manga /Raiwind Road 
Raiwind – District Kasur.

Notes: 

Witness Signature

Signature

Affix
Revenue 

Stamp

PROXY FORM

I / We ______________________________________________________________________________________________ of 
____________________________________________________being a member(s) of Hira Tex�le Mills Limited, and a holder of 
_____________________________________________________________ Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No. 
______________________________________________ (in case of Central Depository System Account Holder A/C 
No.____________________ Par�cipant I.D No.___________________) hereby appoint ________________________  of 
_____________________________________ another member of the Company as per Share Register Folio No. ____________ 
or (Failing him / her______________________  of __________________________ another member of the Company) as my / 
our proxy to a�end and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at Annual General Mee�ng of the Company, to be held on April 
19, 2025 Saturday) at 10.00 AM at the Business Office of the Company (19 Aibak Block New Garden Town, Lahore) and at any 
adjournment thereof. 

As witness my hand this ________________________ day of ________________________________  2025  signed by the said 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ in presence of 
_____________________________________________________________________

a. Proxies, in order to be effec�ve, must be received at the Company's Registered Office / head Office not less 
than 48 hours before the mee�ng duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

b. Signature must agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

c. In case of Central Depository System Account Holder, an a�ested copy of iden�ty Card should be a�ached to 
this proxy form.

d. No person shall act as proxy unless he is member of the company.
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